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INDE.PE,NDEN'I- AUDI'I'OR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Brownwood
Brownwood, 'f'exas

Report on the Audit of the Financial Staternents

Opinion-s

I have audited the accompanying financial statements olthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely prcsented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund inlormation of City of
Brownwood, Texas as ol and lor the year ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In mv opinion, the financial statements referrecl to above present fairll', in all material respects, the respective
Iinancial position ol the goriernmental actirrities, the busir-ress-tyre activities, the aggregate cliscletely presented
component trnit, each major funci, ancl the aguregate remaining iirnd inforrnation of tl're Citl.of Brou'nrvoocl, Texas,
as ol September 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financizrl position, anci, lvhere applicable, cash flou's thereof
fbr the ye ar then ended in accolclance r'r'ith accounting principles generaliy acceptecl in tl-re Unitecl States olAmerica.

Basisfor Opinions

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditine standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gouemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General ol the United States. My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities lor the Audit of the Financiai Statements section of my report. I am required to be independent of
the City of Brownwood, Texas and to meet my other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relatins to my audit. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufiicient and appropriate to
provide a basis {br my audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Managenrent for the Financial Statetnents

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States olAmerica, and lor the design, implementation, and
maintenance olinternal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are lree
lrom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Brownwood, Texas' ability to continue as

a going concern for tweive months beyond the financial statement date, includinu any currently known information
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial Statenrents

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are lree lrom
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therelore is not a guarantce that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Gouunment Auditing Standards will

.G[E,
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always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 'l.he risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than lor one resulting from error, as lraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likeiihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based
on the financial statements.

In perlorming an audit in accordance with ge nerally accepted auditing standards and Goaernment Auditing Standards, I:

r Exercise prolessionai judernent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

r Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement olthe financial statements, whether due to lraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not lor the purpose ol expressing an opinion on the eflectiveness ol the
City of Brownwood, Texas'internal controi. Accordingiy, no such opinion is expressed.

r Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

r Conclude whether, in my judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raisc
substantial doubt about the City of Brownwood,'fexas'ability to continue as a going concern lor a reasonable
pcriod oltime.

I are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that I identified
during the audit.

Require d Supp lenrentary Inforrnation

Accounting principles generzrlly acceptecl in tire Unitecl States olAmerica recprire tirat the lnanagernent's cliscussion

and analysis, the schedules of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedules olpension contributions
ancl br"rdgetary comparison infonnzrtion on pages 4-9 ancl 52-65 be presentect to sr-rpplement the basic financial
statements. Such infor-mation is tire responsibility of management ancl, altl-ror,rgh not a part ol the basic financial
statements, is requirecl bv the Governmental Accounting Stanclarcls Boarcl, i,r,ho cor-isiclers it to be an essential part
olfinancial reporting lor placing tl're basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. I have applieci certain limited grrocecl"rres to the recquirecl supl;lementary in{brmation in accorclance rvith
aucliting stanclarcls generallv acccptecl in tl're Unitecl States of America, ivhich consistecl of incluiries olmanagement
about the methocls of pre paring the inlormation and comparing the inlormation lor consistency n ith management's
responses to m1r incluiries, the basic financiai slatements, and other knorvledse I obtainecl cluring my ar-rclit ol the
basic flnzrncial statements. I clo not express an opinion or pror,icle any assurance on the infbrmation because the
limited proceclures clo not provicle me r,vith sufilcient erriclence to express an opinion ol plovicle any assurance.

S upp I e rn e nt ary I nfo nn a ti o n

N,Iy 2.,11i, was concluctecl lor ti-re purpose of lorming opinions on the finar-icial statements that collectively comprise
tl'ie City olBror,vr-r.'vooc1, Texas'basic financial statements. Tl-re cornbiningfinancial statements ancl the schecltile ol
expendittrres ol lederal ar,r'arcls, as recluired by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unpform Adminutratiue

Requirements, Cost Principks, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards are presented for purposes ol aclclitional analysis
ancl are not a reqtiirecl part of the basic financial statements. Such infbrmation is the responsibility of management
ancl r,vas clerived lrom ancl relates directly to the underlying zrccounting ancl other records usecl to prepare the basic
financial statements. The inlormation has been sulrjectecl to tl-re auditing proceclures appliecl in tl-re audit olthe basic
financial statements and certain aclclitional proceclures, including comparing ancl reconciling such information
clirectly to the unclerlying accounting and other recorcls usecl to prepare tl-re basic financiai statements or to the basic
financial statements themseives, ancl other adclitional procedtres in accordance rvith aucliting standarcls generally
acceptecl in the United States olAmericzr. In my opinion, the combining financial statements ancl the scheclule ol
expenditures of federal arvzrrds are lairly statecl in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as

a'nvhole.
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Other Reporting Required by Goaernrnent Auditing Standards

In accordance with Gouernment Auditing Standorrls, I have also issued my report clated April 26, 2023, on my
consideration of the City of Brownwoocl, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose ol that report is solely to describe the scope ol my testing of internal control over financiai reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to prorride an opinion on the eflectiveness ol the City ep

Brownwood, Texas' internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an

auclit performed in accordance with Gouemment Auditing Sltandards in consiclering City of Brownwood, Texas' internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

LPA lu
I(rischke CPA, PC
April26,2023

o
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City of Brownwood
Managernent's Discussion and Analysis

For Year Ended Septernber 3Or2022
(Unaudited)

As management ol the City of Brownwood, we o{Ier readers ol the City's financial statements this narrative overview and

analysis of the financial activities of the City of Brownwood for the fiscal year ended September 30,2022. We encourage

readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the City's

financial statements, which foliow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City olBrownwood exceeded its liabilities at the ciose olthe fiscal year by fi+6,270,329 (net position),
an increase of $6,496,292 as compared to the prior year. Of this amount) $810,639 is restricted lor debt service,
construction and other uses. The amount invested in fixed assets is fi+6,539,772leaving a negative $(1,080,082) in
unrestricted net position.
As ol the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental activities reported combined ending net position of
$28,019,177,an increase of $2,377,506 in comparison with the prioryear.
At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted net position for the governmental activities was a negative $(283,009)
as compared to a negative $(438,704)in the prior year, an improvement of $155,695. Net position invested in capital
assets lor governmental activities increased by $2,537,990. Net position invested in restricted assets for governmental
activities decreased by $3 16, I 79.

The City's total liabilities increased by $3,890,850 during the current fiscal year. Unearned grant funds increased by

fi2,212,282 and net pension liability decreased by 2,837,177 .

Total revenue increased by $3, I 38,649 over the prior year. General revenues such as property taxes, sales tax and other
taxes increased by $54,863 while operating revenues such as water sales, sewer lees and sanitation lees increased by

$3,083,786.
Expenditures increased by $603,580 primarily due to the combined eflect of an increase in Public Salety costs of
$146,572, an increase of $650,835 in General Government, a decrease of $37,809 in Parks and Community Facilities
costs, a decrease of ff475,240 in Community development and an increase of $79,631 in Special Revenue Activities.
Operating costs lor enterprise activities such as Water, Sewer, Sanitation, Landfill and Airport increased by $ 135,073.

The year ended with a net surplus of $6,496,292 compared with a surplus of $3,961,223 in the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Staternents

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. The City's basic

financial statements consist of three components; l) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and

3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial statements present two di{Ierent views of the City through the use ol
government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains

other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of the City.

Required Cornponents of Annual Financial Report

Basic Financial Staternents

The first two statements in the basic financial statements are the Governrnent-wide Financial Staternents. They provide

both short and long-term inlormation about the City's financial status.

The next statements are Fund Financial Staternents. These statements focus on the activities ol the individual parts of
the City government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There are two parts to

the Fund Financial Statements: l) the governmentai lunds statements and 2) the proprietary funds statements.

a

o

a

a

a
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The next section olthe basic financial statements is the Notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some
of the data contained in those statements. After the notes, Required Supplernentary Inforrnation is provided to show

details about the City's pension funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part
of the statements.

Governrnent-wide Financial Staternents

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the City's finances,
similar in lormat to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The government-wide statements provide short and
iong-term information about the City's financial status as a whole. The two government-wide statements report the City's net
position and how it has changed. Net position is the diflerence between the City's total assets and total iiabilities. Measuring
net position is one way to gauge the City's financial condition.

The government-wide statements are divided into three categories: l)governmental activities; 2) business-type activities; and
3) component units. The governmental activities include most of the City's basic services such as public safety, street
maintenance, parks and recreation, community meeting facilities, health services, and general administration. Taxes finance
most olthese activities. The business-type activities are those that the City charges customers to provide. These include the
water, sewer and sanitation services o{Iered by the City as well as the City operated landfill and airport. The final category is

the component unit. Although legally separate from the City, Brownwood Municipal Development District is important to
the City because the City exercises control by appointine its board members.

The Government-wide Financial Statements are on pages i0- l4 of this report.

Fund Financial Staternents

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the City's most significant activities. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated lor specific activities or objectives.

The City of Brownwood, like ali other governmental entities in Texas, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governrnental Funds Governmental funds are used to account for those lunctions reported as governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements. Most of the city's basic services are accounted lor in governmental funds. These

funds locus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be

available lor spending in the next year. Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting that provides a short-term spending focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader
a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the
City's programs. The relationship between government activities (reported in the Statement olNet Position and the Statement
of Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The Governmental Fund Financial Statements are on pages l5-19 of this report.

Proprietary Funds The City of Brownwood has three major proprietary funds. The Utility Fund is used to account lor
its water and sewer operations. The Sanitation Fund is used to account lor its sanitation service and the operations ol the
landfill. The Airport Fund is used to account for the operations of the Brownwood Regional Airport. These funds are the

same as those lunctions shown in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.

The Proprietary Funds Financial Statements are on pages 20-23 of this report.
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Notes to the Financial Staternents The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding ol
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are on pages 24-5 I of this report.

Other Inforrnation In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain
supplementary inlormation. This includes combining financial statements.

Governrnent-Wide Financial Analysis

The City's combined net position increased from $39,774,037 last year to fi+6,270,329 this year, an increase of $6,496,292
Although there were a variety of factors, the key changes are described under the Financial Highlights section.

City of Brornrnwood Net Position

Govcmmcntal

Activitics

Busincss-typc

Acrivitics Totals
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Currcnt and othcr asscts

Capital Asscts

Dclcrrcd Outflolvs

Total Asscts

s 16,845,586 S 15,639,951

40,636,428 38,306,7r I

1,463p62 1,096,966

S r 0, I 60,785

30,9 I 6,332

350,376

5,356,253

33,r70,279

252,709

s 27,006,371 S 20,996,204

71,512,760 7 t,477,030

r,Bl3,938 1,349,675

s J8,945,576 S 55,043,668 s 41,427,493 S 38,779,241 s 100,373,069 s 93,822,909

Currcnt liabilitics

Long-tcrm iiabilitics

Nct Pension Liability

Dclcrrcd Inflolvs

Total Liabilitics

s I l, 139,42 l S

10,545,46 l

402,200

1,089,259

S 8,9 14,560

I 1,579,700

6,8 18, 106

3,6 14,033

4,559,595

I 0,002,763

8,932,912

1,973,423

I 1,191,887

I 1,95J,353

t,124,57 |

47 1,386

20,053,98r S

22,t25,t61

7,220,306

4,703,292

I r,7 5l,+82

21,958,1 l6
r 0,05 7,483

2,444,809

S

s 30,926,399 S 25,468,693 s 23,176,341 S 24,7+3,t91 s 54, r02,740 S 50,2 I 1,890

Nct Position:

Invcstcd in capit:rl asscts

nct olrclatcd dcbt

Rcstrictcd

Unrcstrictcd

Total Nct Position

27,595,975 S

7 06,21I
(283,009)

25,057,985 S

I,022,390

(438,704\

S 18,943,797 S

104,428

(757,073)

t9,434,702

t40,t57

(5,442,493)

46,539,772 S

B 10,639

44,492,687

I,l62p+7
S

s 28,019,177 S 25,64t,671 s 18,251,152 S 14,t32,366 s 46,270,329 S 39,774,037

Analysis of the City's Operations:

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial condition. The assets of
the City of Brownwood exceeded liabilities by fi46,270,329 as of September 30, 2022. However, the largest portion of the
City's net position (100.6%) reflects the City's investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment),
less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. The City uses these capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequentiy, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of the outstanding reiated debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by
other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to Iiquidate these liabilities. An additional portion of the City's net
position (l.B%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used, primarily bond funds
that must be used for specific projects. This leaves a negative unrestricted balance of $(1,080,082). This was a decrease of
$4,801,1 l5 or B 1.6% over the prior year.

Governrnental activities: Governmental activities increased the City's net position by ff2,377,506

6



Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $4, I I8,786

The following table provides a summary of the City's operations for year ended September 30,2022

Citv of Rror,vnr,vood in Net Position
Govcrnmcntzrl

Activitics
Busincss-typc

Ar:tivitics Totzrls

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 202r

$ 2,997,189 $ 3,339,804 $ 19,304,349 $ l7,6Bs,4s8 $ 22,301,s38 $ 21,025,262

l,98s,822 |,343,57 6 1,98s,822 1,3+3,576

2,659,372 1,539,038 57,887 12,9s7 2,717,259 I ,55 1,995

7,368,702

6,Bt+,240
4,650,338

7,210,802

6,627,106
7,368,702

6,81.+,2+0

4,976,+16

7,2t0,802
6,627, l 06

s,266,s874,7 59,052 326,078 507,s3s
$ 26,+ 7s.663 $ 2+_Bt9 ,378 $ 19.688.314$ 18.205.9s0 $ 46,163,977 $ +3,025,328

Revcnucs:

Program Rcvcnucs:

Fccs, hncs, and chzr.rgcs

for scrviccs

Opcrating grzrrts and
contributions

Capital grants and

contributions

Gcncral Rcvcnucs:

Ad valorcm taxcs

S:rlcs tax

Othcr rcvcnucs

Total Rcvcnucs

Expcnscs:

Gcncrzrl govcrnmcnt

and administr:rtion

Public Safcty

Strccts

Pzuks & Community
Facilitics

Community Dcvckrpmcnt
Spccial Rcv Activitics
Watcr & Scwcr

Sanitation & Landfill
Airport
Intcrcst on long-tcrm
dcbt & dcbt issuiurcc cost

Total Expcnscs

$ 6,523,792 $

9,656,12 I

2,673,377

2,879,s47

146,356

1,902,485

316,479

5,872,957

9,509,s49

2,559,6+2

2,9t7,356
62 r,596

|,822,854

326,482

8,469,069

5,165,915

1.,592,732

341,8t2

8,858,306

5,146,721

1,087,6 16

3+1,026

6,523,792 fi

9,656,121

2,673,377

2,879,5+7

I 46,3s6

1,902,48s

8,469,069

s,l6s,9 l s

1,592,732

s,872,957

9,509,549

2,559,6+2

2,917,356

621,596

1,822,854

B,85B,3O6

5,t+6,721
1,087,616

$ $ $

658,291 667,508
$ 24,098,157 $ 23,630,436 $ 15,569,528 $ 15,433,669 $ 39,667,685 $ 39,064, 1 0s

Changc in nct position

bcforc transfcrs $ 2,377,506 $ $ 4,1 lB,786 $1,188,942

3,306,t22

2,772,28r $ 6,496,292$ 3,961.,223

(3,306, l 22)Transfcrs

Chzrngc in nct position

Nct position Octobcr I

Nct position Scptcmbcr 30

$ 2,377,506 $ +,+95,06+

25,6+t,67 I 2r,146,607

$ 4,1 18,786 $ (s33,841)

t+,t32,366 t+,666,207

$ 18,2sr,152 $ t4,t32366

$ 6,496,292 $

39,774,037

3,96t,223

35,8l2,B l4

$ 28,019, 177 $ 25,64r ,67 l $ 46,270,32e $ 39,774,037

FinancialAnalysis of the City of Brownwood Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements

Governrnental Funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. Specifically,
unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year.

7



The general lund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end olthe current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance olthe
General Fund was ff8,267 ,457 as compared to $8,928,839 in the prior year, a decrease of $66 l,3B L Total fund balance was

$8,534,502 this year compared to 99,545,879 in the prior year, a decrease of $1,011,377. This decline was primarily due to

a decrease in the cash and investments balances in the General Fund of $2,382,680 and a decrease in the net receivables in

the General Fund of $841,52+.

As a measure olthe general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance

to total fund expenditures. These percentages were 30.40lo and3I.4o/o respectively compared to 36.4o/o and 40.0% in the

prior year.

At September 30,2022, the governmental lunds of the City reported a combined lund balance ol$9,550,006 compared to

the prior year which was $10,412,059, a decrease of $862,053.

Proprietary Funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide

statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net position of the Utiiity (INater Delivery, Wastewater Collection and Wastewater
-Ireatment), Sanitation (Trash Collection and Landfill) and Airport Funds at the end of the fiscal year amounted to a negative

$(797,073). This represented an increase of $4,693,58I .

Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the City revised the budget on several occasions. Generally, budget

amendments lall into one of three categories: l) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original

budget ordinance once exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external

sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services.

In the General Fund, revenues were over budgeted amounts by $1,526,933 or 7.9o/o while expenditures came in over budget

by $1,287,707 or 6.20/o. This represented a net positive variance of $239,226.

Capital Asset and Debt Adrninistration

Capital assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmentai and business type activities as of September 30,

2022,totals $71,552,760 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings, roads and bridges, land, machinery

and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles.

Additional inlormation on the City's capital assets can be lound in Note B of the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-terrn Debt. As of September 30, 2022,the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $18,215,549. All of this debt

is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. None of the debt represents bonds secured solely by specified revenue sources

(i.e. revenue bonds) since the last remaining revenue bond was refunded in September, 2005.

Additional inlormation regarding the City's long-term debt can be lound in Note I I of the Basic Financial Statements.

Econornic Factors

The foilowing key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the City of Brownwood

Low unemployment. Brown County's average unemployment rate for 2022 was 5.670 compared to the state average

(6.0%) and national average (5.5%).

Increasing property values. Taxable assessed values for 2022 increased by 5.lB% lrom $980,76+,620 in 2021 to
$ 1,03 1,52 1,241 in 2022.
Sales tax collections increased from $2.l3M in the prior year to $2.20M in the current year for the economic deveiopment
t/z cent tax, primariiy due to improvements in our local economy.

a

a

a

B



a

a

a

Economic Factors

The following key economic indicators reflect the growth and prosperity of the City of Brownwood.

Low unemployment' Brown County's average unemployment rate for 2O2Zwas 5.6o/ocompared to the state average (6.OVo)
and national average (5.5"/o).

Increasing property values. Taxable assessed values for 2072 increased by 5.18% from $980,764,620 in ZOZI ro
$ 1,031,521,241 in 2022.
Sales tax collections increased from $2.13M in the prior year to $2.20M in the current year for the economic development
Vz cent tax, primarily due to improvements in our local economy.

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, ZOZ3

Governmental Activities: The propefty tax rate decreased from .731? the prior year to .6864 cenrs per hr-rndred dollars
valuation' Sales tax is projected to increase by $53,276 over the amount budgeted in the prior year due ro economic growth.
Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are expected to increase by 7.02o/o. A p"y raise of just under $1 million was
budgeted for non'civil service employees. Pay raises were budgeted for police and fire employees as a resulr of meet and colfer
negotiations.

Business - type Activities: There is an increase of I4.52o/o in the water consumption rate due to BCWID's increase in the
wholesale rate of 19'92/o. There were increases in the sewer, sanitation, or landfill rates (nonresidents only) in the amount of
4.5o/o.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the City of Brownwood's finances for those with an interest in this area.

Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to
Melanie Larose CGFO, Director of Finance, City of Brownwood, PO Box 1389, Brownwood, fi 76804, QZ5) 646.5775.
Email address is mlarose@brownwoodtexas.gov. Complete financial statements of the component unir can be obtained
direct from Brownwood Municipal Development District as detailed in Note 1 to rhe Basic Financialstatemenrs.

Emily Melanie Larose, CGFO

Director of FinanceCity Manager
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATE,MENT OF NE,T POSITION

September 30,2022
Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

Busine ss-t1pe

Activities Total

Comnonent Unit
Brownwood

MDD

ASSETS:

Pooled cash and cash equivalents

Non pooled cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Investments designated lor closure and

postclosure

Receivables, net

Inventory

Prepaid expense

Land held lor development

Restricted assets

Capital assets, net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Amounts related to pensions

Total Deferred Outflows ol Resources

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabie

Accrued salaries

IJnearned funds - grants

Liabilities payable from restricted assets:

Customer utility deposits

Tax note payable

Bonds payable

Noncurrent liabilities:

Bstimated liability lor landfill closure and

postclosure care costs

Net pension liability
Compensated absences:

Portion due or payable within one year

Portion due or payable after one year

Leases payable:

Portion due or payable within one year

Portion due or payable alter one year

Notes payable:

Portion due or payable within one year

Portion due or payable after one year

Tax note payable:

Portion due or payable within one year

Portion due or payable after one year

Bonds payable:

Portion due or payable within one year

Portion due or payable alter one year

Total Liabilities

$ s7,482,014 $ 41,077,117 $ 98,559,13 1 $ 13,04s,732

$ (3,557,533) $

+,361

12,202,423

2,916,238

30,598

3,878

2,26+,766 $

5,972

1,496,064

2,09+,+BB

1,956,279

761,844

2,086

(1,292,767) $

i0,333

13,698,487

2,094,+BB

4,872,5t7

792,++2

5,964

(16,1B 1)

8,r72,219

4t7,+98

5+0,577

3,901, 157

30,462
5,2+5,621

40,636,428

1,579,286

30,9 16,332

6,824,907

7 r,552,760

$ 1,463,s62 $ 350,376 $ 1,813,938 $

$ 1,463,562 $ 3s0,376 $ I,B 13,938 $

$ 57+,t29 $

220,299

4,498,727

1 13,066

6,8 i B,l 06

1,385,092

77s,560

547,8l0

707,097

6BB,6BB

1,384,+38

54,815

233,685

t29,4e3 $

58,1 50

703,622 $

278,449

+,498,727

1,r27 ,197

21,841

439, l84

7,646,133

7,220,306

1,558,1 70

855,544

59B,B6B

7sl,1l I

1,637,815

3,807,957

73,159

405,000

1,470,816

16,305,549

6+5,326

3,723

10

12,819

3,871

15,296

15,459

279,990

4,790,000

l,l27,rg7
2l,B+I

326,118

7,646,133

+02,200

173,078

79,984

5 1,058

44,014

9+9,127

2,+23,519

18,3+4

171,3 l5

831 ,934

8,478,920

63B,BB2

7,826,629

$ 27,312,366 $

l0

22.087.082 $ +9,399,448 $ 5,766,494



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENT OF NET POSTTTON (CONT.)

September 30,2022

Primary Govemment
Govemmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities Total

Component IJnit
Brownwood

MDD

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOTJRCES
Amounts related 1o pensions

Arnounts related to leases

Arnounts re lated to bond refunding

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

$ 3,405,386 $
| +4 ,451

935,099 $

154.,160

+,340,485
298,6 1 1

$

64 196 6+ 196

$ 3.6r4.033 $ 1,089,259 fi 4,703,292 $ -

NE"f POSITION
Invested in capitai assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted for:

Municipal Court
Vehicular child safety

Law enforcement
Drug awareness education
Lehnis Museum
Beautification
Tourism promotion
Debt service

Fabis Park

Construction
Grant expenditures

(Jnrestricted

Total Net Position

$ 27 ,595,97 5 $ I8,943,797 fi +6,539,772 $

46,393
22,BBO

23,37 7

r,873
10,543

2,1++
350,398

57,736
39,i71

LJ I,JJ I

t+,359
(283,009)

+6,393
22,BBO

23,37 7

1,873
10,543

2,1++
3 50,398

57 ,736
39,1 7 1

241,765
14.,359

( 1,080,082)

10

3,266,1 17104,428

(797,073) 013 111+

$28 019 177 $ 18,251,1s2 8 46,270,329 Xt 7,279,238

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Broumwood, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Program Rcvcnuc

Expcnscs
Chargcs

For Scrviccs
Opcrating Grants Capital Grant^s

and Contributions and Contribution-.

Functions/ programs

Govcmmcntal Activitics:
Gcncral govcrnmcnt
Municipal court
Policc
Dispatch
Firc
Dcvckrpmcnt scrviccs

Strcct
Hcalth
Community lacilitics
Parks and rccrcation
Public works/cnginccrinu
Community dcvclopmcnt
Intcrcst on long-tcrm dcbt
Dcbt issuancc costs

Spccial rcvcnuc activitics
Trrtal Govcmmcnkrl Activitics

Busincss-typc Activitics:
Watcr
\Mastc watcr collcction
\ y'astc watcr trcal-mcnt

Sanitation
Landfill
Airport
Intcrcst on long-tcm dcbt

Tkrtal Busincss-typc Activitics

-IOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Componcnt IJnit:
Brownwood Municipal Dcvcl<lpmcnt District

$ 5,3t9,942
260,352

3,926,8 I 8

|,020,737
4,152,362

85 1,034
2,67 3,37 7

295,852
777,364

2,1 02,1 83

352,8 l6
146,356
t5q qq,

56,+87
I,902,485

$ r,4l2,7o8 $ 3s2,993 $

333,646
423,606

I I,300
107,904

I s0,0 l6
40,r62
96,986

500

36,702

283,87 |
8,000

I 62,996

2,3 18,105
t78,27 r

420.86 I 303 756
$ 24,098, l5 7 $ 2,997.189 $ 1,985,822 $ 2,6s9,372

$ $s,281,967 $

I,9 19,505
1,267 ,597
2,204,468
2,96t,447
r,592,732

34t,Bt2

7,t+5,503 $

4,109,808

3,405,938
3,395,367
t,247 ,733 57,887

$ 1s,569,528 $ 19,30+,349 $ $ s 7,BB7

$ 39,667,685 $ 22,30l.s3B $ r ,985 ,822 fi 2 ,7 17 ,2s9

$ 3,4s0, r 24 $ $ $

See accompanying notes to basic financial statement

r2



Nct (Expcnsc) Rcvcnuc and Ch angcs in Nct Position
Primary Govcmmcnt Componcnt l,.lnit

Govc rnmc ntal
Activitics

Busincss-typc

Activitics Tbral
Brownwood

MDD

$ (3,554,2+1)
(260,3s2)

(3,592,672)
(597,131)

(4, 104,360)
(743,t30)

(2,s 10,38l )

138,035
1,588,903

(1 ,826,e26)
(3s2,8 i 6)

(146,3 56)
(2se,ss2)

(s6,487)
( 1 7 7,868)

(3,554,24r)
(260,3s2)

(3,ss2,672)
(s97,13 l)

(4, 104,360)
(743,tso)

(2,s 10,381)
138,035

1,sB8,903
( 1 ,82 6,92 6)

(352,8 l 6)

(146,3s6)
(259,992)

(s6,487)

0 7 7 .868)

$

fi (16,+55,77+) $ (16,455,774)

$ 1,863,536 $

2,190,303
(t,267 ,597)

t ,201 ,47 0

433,920
(287 ,r 12)
(341 ,B 12)

l ,863 ,s 36

2,190,303
(1,267 ,597)
r,201,470

433,920
(287,tt2)
(341 ,B l2)

$ 3,792,708 $ 3,7 92,7 0B

fi (t6,+55,77+) $ 3 792,708 $ (12,663,066)

$ (3,4s0.124)

l3



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONT.)

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-type

Activities

Primary Govemment Component IJnit
Brownwood

MDDTotal

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Income (Expense)

General Revenues:

T'axes:

Ad valorem
Sales

Other
Eamings on investments

Miscellaneous
Gain on clisposal of assets

Total Revenrre

7 ,368,7 02
6,814,24O
4,094,344

92,332
151,127
312,535

7,368,702
6,914,24O
4,094,344

tt7,+69
452,068
312,535

fi (16,+ss,774) $ 3,792,708 $ (12,663,066) $ (3,450,124)

$ s $ $

2,200,159

86,407
I,860

97,452
$ I8,833,280 $ 326,078 $ r9,r59,3s8 $ 2,385,878

$ 2,377,506 $ 4,1 18,786 fi 6,496,292 $ (l ,064,246)

25,r37
300,941

CHANGE,IN NETPOSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR
AS RESTATED

NETPOSITION - END OFYEAR

25,64r,67 | 14 r32 366 39,77 4,037 3+3 4B+o

$ 28,019,177 $ 18,251,152 fi +6,270,329 $ 7 279 238

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

BAI-ANCE SHEEf'S
GOVERhJMENTAL FUNDS

September 30,2022

Gcncral
Fund

Nonm4jor Othcr
Govcmmcntal

Funds

Total
Govcmmcntal

Funds
ASSElS

ASSETS:
Poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Non pclolcd czrsh and cash cquivalcnts
Invcstmcnts
Rcccivablcs, nct
Invcntory
Prcpaid cxpcnsc
Intcrnal balanccs
Rcstrictcd asscLs

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES-DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BAI-ANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payablc
Accrucd salarics
Compcnsatcd abscnccs

lJncamcd rcvcnuo

TOTAL LIABILINES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
lJnavailablc rcvcnuc
Amounts rclzrtcd to lcascs

TOTAL DEFERRED INTLOWS OF RESOUCES

FUND BAI-ANCES:
Nonspcndablc:

Invcntory
Prcp:rid cxpcnsc
Notc rcccivablc

Rcstrictcd lor:
Municipal Court
Vchicular child salcty
Law cn[orccmcnt
Dn-r14 awarcncss cducation
Lchnis Muscum
Bcautification
Tourism promotion
Dcbt scrvicc
Fabis Park
Construction
Grant cxpcnditurcs

Assigncd to:
Hcalth ernd nutrition programs

Unassigncd

TOTAL FUND BAI-ANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND ruND BAI-ANCES

$ (3,740,680)
+,336

12,202,423
2,320,998

30,s98
3,87 8

55,33 0
4,621,858

$ 183,147 $ (3,s57,s33)
4,361

12,202,423
2,7 46,535

30,s98
3,878

25

425,537

(s5,3 30)

623 / oJ 5,245,62r

$ 15,498,741 $ t,t77,t42 $ 16,67s,883

$ 529,15+ $

204,1 l 9

|,352,223
4,498,727

44,97 5 $

16,180
32,869

57 4,t29
220,299

1,385,092
4,498.727

$ 6,584,223 $ 94.024 $ 6.678.247

$ 244,69s $

t3s,32I
58,484 $

9,1 30
303,1 79
144,451

$ 380,016 $ 67,614 S +47,630

$ 30,598 $

3,878
I I 1,000

14,35I

8,267,+57

350,398
57,736
39,t7 |

t37,337

32,31O
398,552

30,s98
3,87 B

1 I 1,000

32,3tO
8,666,009

$

46,393
22,BBO

23,37 7
t,873

to,543
2,144

+6,393
22,880
23,377

T,873
I0,543
2,144

35 0,3 9B

57 ,7 36
39,1 7 1

137,337
14,359

$ 8,534,s02 $ r,0 15,504 $ 9,s50,006

,74r$r,r77,142$i6,675,883

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNME,NTAL FUNDS BAI-ANCE
SHEETS TO THE STATEMEI\T OF NET POSITION

September 30,2022

TOTAL FUND BAI-ANCE - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AmounLs rcportcd lor sovcmmcntal activitics in thc st.:ltcmcnt of nct position arc diffcrcnt bccausc

Capital asscts uscd in gove mmcntal activitics arc n()t currcnt financial rcs()urccs and arc not rcportcd in thc

sovcmmcnurl lunds balancc shcct, nct olaccumulatcd dcprcciation and amortization ol$67,507,068.

Somc clf thc City's taxcs will bc collcctcd altcr ycar cnd, but arc not availablc soon cnough to pay for thc
currcnt pcriod's cxpcnditurcs and arc rcportcd as unavailablc rcvcnuc in thc sovcmmcntal lunds.

Rcvcnucs rcccivablc on warranLs arc n()t currcnt financial rcsources and arc not rcportcd in thc govcmmcnlal
funds balancc shcct, nct of allowancc lor uncollcctcd warants ol$199,727.

Dclcrrcd inflows lrom bond rcfunding arc n()t rcportcd in thc sovcmmcnterl lunds balancc shcct

Long-tcrm liabilities arc n()t duc and payablc in thc curcnt pcriod and arc not rcportcd in thc sovcmmcntiil
lunds bal:lncc shcct

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTTVITIES

$ 9,550,006

+o,636,+28

303,179

169,703

(64,196)

{22,575,943)

$ 28,0 19,I 77

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPEJ\DITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BAI-ANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Gcncral
Fund

Nonmajor Othcr
G<>vcrnmcntal

Funds

Tirtal
Govc rn mcnLll

Funds

REVENUES:
Ad valorr:m taxcs

Salcs laxcs

Othcr taxcs
Fincs
Liccnscs and ficcs

Chargcs hrr scrviccs
Intc rgovc rnmc ntal
Intc rc st

Gr:rnl^s :rnd contributions
Misccllancous

Total Rcvcnuc

EXPENDITURES:
Currcnt:

City Council
Administration
City Sccrctary
Financc/acco u n tir rg

Municipal Court
Policc
Dispatch
Firc
Dcvclopmcnt scrviccs

Strcct
Hcalth
Community scrviccs
Intcrg<lvc rnmcnurl
Utility billing
Community facilitics
Opcrations support
Pu rchasing/warc ho usc

Parks and rccrcation
Flcct scrviccs
City Attorncy
Community dcvclopmcnt
Public works/cngincc rine
Emcrgcncy managcmcnt
FIumzLn rcs()urccs
Firc Marshal
Gcncral lund contingcncy
Inlormation tcchnology
TransporLrtion muscum
Othcr
Spccial rcvcnuc lunds
Capital outlay

Dcbt Scrvicc:
Principal
In I <: rt:sl

Bond issuancc costs

Bond lccs
'Ibtal Expcnditurcs

EXCESS (DEFICIENC9 OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDI'ruRES

6,2+4,57 t
6,814,2+O
3,666,++6

317,92r
141,28 1

3 36,503
1,758,930

91,7 t+
3,34r,+38

15 t ,t27

7,406,827
6,Bt+,2+O
4,O94,344

317,921
t+I,281
3 36,503

1,758,930
92,332

+,645,t94

$ $ t,162,256 $

+27,B9B

6rB
1,303,756

420,86 I 57 I 9BB

$ 22,864,l7I $ 3 315 389 $ 26,1 79,560

$ 7+,Ot5 $

346,624
l r6,708
3Bi,l07
289,865

+,BAA,+79

1,02 I,055
3,962,080
I,6 13,103

2,78s,1 3 r

298,697
5 19,393

268,65+
4s8,828

3 ,O7 7 ,904
l s4,0B5
l82,940

t,9+2,s+B
I,861,462

231,644
145,5 5 0

348,850
28,502

272,7 56
6,525

97,826
948,62r
225,397
663,622

7 4,Ot5
346,62+
I 16,708
3Bl,l07
2B9,B6s

+,BBB,+79

l,021,05s
3,962,080
1,613,103
2,785,t3 |

298,697
5 19,393

268,654
4s8,828

3,O7 7 ,904
154,085

I82,940
|,9+2,5+B
1,861,462

231,,6+4
145,5 5 0

348,Bs0
28,502

272,7 56
6,525

97,426
9+8,62r
22s,397
663,622

1,970,950
14,750

$

1,970,950
1+,7 50

1,079,8 t 5
302,8 l3

56,+87
806

1,079,8l5
302,8l3

s6,+87
806

fi 27,2\r,97t $ 3,+25.62r $ 30,637,592

t7

$ (4,347,800) $ (r 10,232) $ (4,458,032)



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEME,NT OF RBVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CES

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Gcncral
Frrnd

Nonmajor Othcr
Govcmmcntal

Fund

Total
Govcmmcntal

Funds
EXCESS (DEFICIENC'N OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITTJRES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Translcrs
Rclunding bond procccds
Paymcnt to bond rclunding cscft)w attcnt
Notc procccds
Lcasc liability
Procccds liom salc of capital asscLs

Nct Othcr Financing Sourccs (Uscs)

NETCI{ANGE IN FTjND BAI-ANCE,S

[.UND BAI-ANCE - BEGINNING OFYEAR AS RESTATED

T,UND BAI-ANCE - END OFYEAR

$ (4,347,800) $ (110,232) $ (4,458,032)

$ (se,ss6) $ s9,556 $

6,830,000
(6,630,000)

6,830,000
(6,630,000)
1,345,826
|,737 ,6rB

312,535

|,3+5,826
1,737 ,6tB

3t2,535
$ 3,336,423 $ 2s9,556 $ 3,s9s,979

$ (1,011,377) $

9,5+5,879

149,324 $

866, l B0

(862,053)

10,412,059

$ 8,534,502 $ 1,0 1s,s04 $ g.ss 0,006

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMEN]'AL FUNDS STATEMENT'S OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BAI-ANCES TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

NET CHANGE IN FUND BAI-ANCE,S - TOTAL GOVERNMENIAL FTINDS

Thc changc in nct position rcportcd ftrr govcmmcntal activitics in thc statcmcnt of activitics is diffcrcnt bcc::.usc

Govcmmcnkll lunds rcport capital outlays as cxpcnditurcs whilc govcmmcnral activitics rcport cost o{'thcsc
asscLs allocatcd ovcr thcir cstimatcd livcs as dcprcciation and amortizati()n cxpcnsc.

Capital asscts purchascd
Dcprcciation and amodizalion

Thc issuancc olkrnq-Lcm clcbtprovidcs currcntfinanci:rl rcs()urccs tr) sovcmmcntal lunds, whilc thc rcp:rymcnt
of thc principal ollonn-tcrrn dcbt consumcs thc cuncnt financial rcs()urccs of qovcmmcntal funds. Ncithcr
transacti()n, howcvcr, has any cfft:ct on nct positi<ln.
Principal advanccs on lons-lcm dcbt
Principal paymcnts on lons-tcm dcbt
Changc in compcnsatcd abscnccs

Currcnt amortization olbond prcmiums and dclcrrcd ilmount on rclunding
Changc in nct pcnsion liability and rclatcd dclcrrcd outflows and inflows

Somc of thc City's taxcs in thc statcmcnt <lf activitics do not providc currcnt financial rcs()urccs:rnd:lrc not
rcportcd as rcvcnuc in thc funds.

RcvcnucsonwarantsandcitationswillnotbccollcctcdforscvcralmonthsaltcrthcCity'sfiscal ycarcnd. Thcy
arc not considcrcd availablc rcvcnuc and arc not includcd in thc qovcmmcntal fund. Rcvcnucs :l.ccrucd lrom
warftrnts and citations dccrcascd by this amount this ycar.

CHANGES IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ (862,053)

5,O+1,+42
(3,s 1s,384)

(8,175,826)
8,765,480

52,551
50,020

I,037,708

(38,125)

DI 693

fi 2,317,506

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATE.MENTS OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

September 30,2022
Brrsincss-Tvoc irq - Ir.ntcrnrise Iirnd

Utility
l"und

Sanitation

I"und

Airport
Frrnd Total

CURRENT ASSI]TS

Poolcd cash and cursh cquivalcnts

Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts

Invcstmcnts

Invcstments dcsigratcd lor closurc and postclosurc

Accounts rccciYablc, net

Invcntory
Prcpaid cxpcnscs

Total Currcnt Asscts

NONCURRENT ASSITS:
Rcstrictcd asscts

Lcascs rcr:cir,ablt:

Cirpital asscr.s, nct

Total Noncurrcnt Asscts

TOTAL ASSETS

DIIIERRED OUTIILOWS OII RBSOURCES:

Amounts rclatcd to pcnsions

TOTAL DITIiLRRDD OUTITLOWS Oli RESOURCDS

CI JRRI.]NT I,IABILITILS:
Accounts payablc

Accrucd salarics

Lcascs payablc

Notcs payable

Tax notc payablc

Bonds pzryablc

Compcnsatcd irbscnccs

Total Currcnt Liabilitics

LIABI LITI ES PAYABLI] IIROI\,I RI]STRICTID ASSL']'S:

Customcr u'atcr mc[cr dcpr,sits

Tax notc payablc

Bonds payablc

Total l,iabilitics Payablc fiom Rcstrictcd Asscts

NONCURRDNT LIABILITIIiS:
Compcnsatcd abscnccs

Nct pcnsion liabiliry
Lcascs pay:rblc

Notcs payablc

Tax notc payablc

Bonds pzryablc

Accrucd landfill closurc and postclosurc carc costs

Total Noncurrcnt Liabilitics

TOTAL LIABILIllDS

DIjI.'DRRDD INIILOWS OII RDSOURCLS:

Amounts rclatcd to pcnsions

Amounts rclatcd to lcascs

TO'IAL DLITI]RRDD INIILOWS OII RUSOURCBS

NLT POSI'IION:
Invcstcd in capital asscts, nct o[ rclatcd dcbt

Rcstrictcd lor construction

Unrcstrictcd

TOlAL NET POSITION

S 1,157 ,706 S

L O99

708,293

r, il3,530 S

650

187 ,71 t

2,094,488

492,898

(6,470) S

400

92,374

BB,7 57

2,264,766
J,972

1,496,064

2,09+,488
I ,86 1,663

761,844

2,086

1,276,391

673,O87

2,086

s 3,822,485 s 4,489,337 S 175 06I S 8,486,883

S 1,32r,604 S

2 1.968, 1 79

253,682 S

6,999,832

94,6 l 6

1,948,32 l

1,579,286

94,6 l6
30,9 r6,332

S

s 23,293,783 S 7,253,514 s 2,042,937 S 32.590.234

s 27, l 16,268 S r r,742,85 I S 2,2t7,998 s 41,077,1 r7

s 174,505 q 150,284 S 25,:87 S 3r0,316

S 17 4,501 s I J0,284 25,587 $ 350,3 76q

S 65,3 l4 S

28,206

36,804

28t,233

)7,+54 S

2r,776
t4,254

667,894

18,34+

I 27,iBB
67,902

6,72i S

4,168

I 7,36 I

r29,493

58, I 50

5 1,058

949,t27
t8,344

63B,BB2

t73,078
5 t I,294

87,B I5

s 1,0 l 0,666 s 979,212 S 28,254 S 2,018, 132

S r,t27,t97 S

r98,706

2 l,84 I

t27 t2

S S 1,127 ,t97
2 I,B4l

326,llB
s 1,325,903 S 149,253 S s 1,475,156

S 42,33t S

200,3 r 5

28,3 I B

634,164

28,327

t72,514

I 5,696

1,789,355

l7l,3l5
957,061

7,646,t33

9,326 S

29,37 |

79,984

402,200

44,014

2,423,519
l7l,3l5

7,826,629

7,646,t33

S

6,869,562

s I ,714,690 s 10,780,407 S 38,697 s 18,593,794

s 10,1 1 1,259 s 1 1,908,872 S 66,95 I s 22,087,082

s 465,725 S 40I,OBB S 68,286

r54,160

935,099

154,160

S

S 465,725 S 40 I,OBB S 222.446 S 1,089,259

s 13,67 r,926 S 3,323,550
t04,428

(3,844,803)

s 18,943,797

104,428

(1et,073)

-l----.1!ls!1rt

S 1,948,32 I

r,867041,863

s 16,7 I 3,789 s (416,825) S 1,954, lB8

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE,S
IN ruND NE,T POSITION PROPRIE,TARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Businr:ss-Tvnc Activi - F.ntcrnricc Frrn.l

Utility
Fund

Sanitation
Fund

Airport
Fund Tbral

OPERATING REVENUES:
Chargcs lor scrvicc
Misccllancous

Total Opcratins Rcvcnucs

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Pcrsonncl scrviccs

Supplics
Contractual
Maintcnancc
Sundry chargcs
Support scruiccs
Dcprcciation and amortization

Tkltal Opcratine Expcnscs

OPERATTNG GArli (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE:
Granls and contributions
Ini<:rt:si in<:omc

Intcrcst cxpcnsc
Nct Non-Opcrating Rcvcnuc (Expcnsc)

CHANGES IN NETPOSITION

NET POSITION - BEGINNING AS RESTATED

NETPOSITION. ENDING

74-033 $ 6,883,524 $ r,247,733 $ 19,60s,290

$ 11,255,3 l1 $

2t8,722
6,801,30s $

82,219
t,2+7,733 $ 19,304,349

300,94 I

$ lr,4

$ |,728,9+5 $

300,960
2,BOB,B35

B 14,563
737,892
768,204

1,309,669

r,6 r 7,616
ss3,7 r o
616,125
27 1,37 4
377,+96
+73,400

1,2s6,195

$ 2+9,607 $

856,688
86,499
77,3t I

322,627

3,596,168
1,7 I 1,358
3,5 I 1,459
I , I 63,248
I,l l5,3BB
1,241,60+
2,888,49 l

$ 8,469,068 $ 5,165,916 $ 1,592,732 $ 15,227,7t6

$ 3.004.96s $ 1,717,608 $ (344,999) fi +,377 ,s7 +

a

4,7 65 18,86s
(7 o,7 40)

s7,Ba7 $

1,507
57,887
25,r37

(341.812)

$ $

7r
$ (266,307) $ (s1.875) $ 59,394 $ (25B,7BB)

$ 2,738,658

13,975,131

$ I,665,733 $ (28s,605) $

2,239,793

4,I 18,786

14,132,366(2,082.558)

$ 16,7 13,789 $ (416,82s) $ 1,9s4,i88 $ r8,2s1,152

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Iror the Year Ended September 30,2022

Busincss-Tvpc Activitics - Entcrprisc Fund
Utility
Fund

S:lniultio n

Fund
Airport
Fund Toual

CASH FLOWS [,ROM OPERA"I'ING ACTTVITIES:
Cash rcccivcd lrom customcrs
Cash paymcnts to supplicn lor soods and scrviccs
Cash paymcnLs to cmployccs ftrr scrwiccs

Nct Cash From Opcrating Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL T.INANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Incrcasc in customcr mctcr dcposiLs

Nct Cash Fnrm Noncapital Financine Activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITALAND REI-ATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principzrl paymcnts on bonds
Princip:rl paymcnts ()n urx notc
Procccds lrom notcs
Principal paymcnts on n()tcs

Principal paymcnts on lcascs

Acquisition and construction of capital asscls

Grz-nt incomc
Intcrcst cxpcnsc

Nct C:lsh From Capital and Rclatcd Financins Activitics

CASH f.LOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchasc of invcstmcnLs
Intcrcst incomc

Nct Cash Fnrm Invcstine Activitics

NETINCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EqUIVALE,NTS

CASH AND CASH EqUTVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EqUTALENTS. END OFYEAR

$ 3,468,26s $ 3,037,892 $ (68,689)

$ 11,167,588 $
(s,790,329)
( r.908,994)

6,857,806 $
(2,056,2+2)

0,763,672)

1,2s8,26s $

(27 4,623)
(1,052,331)

19,283,6s9
(8,121,l e4)
(+,724,ss7)

$ 6.+37 ,468

$ 44,904 $ $ g ++,904

$ 44,904 $ $ $ +4,904

$ (685,000) $ $

72,290
(348,6s0)

(36,66e)
(t2s,727)

57,887
(301,024) (s6,+2r)

$ (l,424,780) $ (889,146) $ 57,887 $ (2,2s6,039)

$ (7 04,7 6+)

+,7 65
$ (948,863) $

I B,B65
$ (1,6s3,627)

r,507 25 t37

$ (6ee,eee) $ (e2e,ee8) $ r,so7 $ (l,628,490)

$ i,388,390 $

I,090,482

(24s,000) $

(40,l Bs)

609,394
(626, l 38)

(t+,2o4)
(+76,5s2)

(930,000)
(40, l 8s)

68 1,684
(97 +,788)

(s0,873)
(602,319)

57,887
(3s7,445)

t,2tB,7 4B $

l+3,39 |

(e,2e5) $

3,225

2,597,8+3

|,237 ,O9B

fi 2,478,872 $ t,362,139 $ (6,070) $ 3,834,941

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF BROWN,VOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

ST'ATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FTJNDS

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Busincss-Tvpc Activitics - Entcrprisc Fund
Utility
Fund

Sanitation
Fund

Airport
Fund Total

RECONCII-IATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH FROM OPERA-IING ACTIVIIfES

oPERA'rrNG GArN (LOSS)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING GAIN (LOSS)

TO NET CASH FROM OPERATTIIG ACTTVITIES:
Dcprccialion and amortization
Closurc and postclosurc carc c()sls

Changcs in asscLs and liabilitics:
Rcccivablcs
Invcntorics
Prcpaid cxpcnsc
Accounts payablc
Accrucd salarics
Compcns:ltcd abscnccs
Pcnsion asscLs and liabilitics

NETCASH FROM OPERATING ACTryITIES

$ 3,004,96s $ 1,7 r 7,608 $ (344,999) $ 4,377 ,574

1,309,669 I ,256, 195

237,3+7

(2s,7 18)

322,627

10,532
(2+,73t)

2,888,491
237,347

(321,631)
(80,456)

3, 187

(309, l 0s)
(4,91B)

3,304
(356,325)

(306,445)
(55,725)

3,1 87
(3o7,337)

(3,O7 4)

640
(177,615)

(t,484)
(1 ,s53)
2,+64

(146,971)

(284)
(2e 1)

196
(3 1,739)

$ 3,468,265 $ 3,037,892 _$_____l9g,6gu $ 6,+37,468

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CI'|Y OF BROWNWOOD, f'EXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEME,NTS

September 30,2022

NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POI,ICIES

General Statement

The City of Brownwood, Texas was incorporated in I BB4 and adopted its Home Rule Charter in April, 1955, under
the provisions of Act 279,P.A. 1909, as amended (Home Rule City Act). 'fhe City operates under a council-manager
form of government and provides the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire),
highways and streets, sanitation and social services, cuitural-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning
and general administrative services.

'I'he City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local
governments through its pronouncements (Statements and interpretations). The more significant accounting policies
established by GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

Financial Reporting Entity

'I'hese financial statements present the City (primary government) and its component unit, thc Ilrownwood
Municipal Deveiopment District (BMDD). As deftned by GASB No. 14, component units are legally separate entities
that are included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operating or financial relationships
with the City.

BMDD is a political subdivision of the State of Texas and the City of Brownwood and has the powers and duties
given by Section 377 ol the Texas Locai Government Code (Act). The District was established lor the purpose of
developing and financing all permissible development projects prescribed by the Act. The District receives its
primary funding from a local sales tax approved by the voters. The aflairs of the District are managed by a Board
of Directors. The Board has five members appointed by the Mayor of the City of Brownwood with the approval ol
the City ol lJrownwood City Council. 'fhe ITMDD is reported as a component unit due to the City's power to
appoint a voting majority olthe Board.

Condensed statements of the discretely presented component unit are shown on the Statement of Net Position and
the Statement of Activities in separate component unit columns.

Complete financiai statements of the BMDD can be obtained directly as lollows:

Brownwood Municipai Development District
501 Center Avenue
Bro"tmwood. Texas 7680 I

Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of changes in net position)
report inlormation on all of the activities of the City. The effect of interfund activity, within the governmental and
business-type activities columns, has not been removed lrom these statements. All interlund charges are charges for
goods or services provided. Governmental activities, which normaily are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
lor support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses ol a given program are oflset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific program. Program revenues
include l) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use , or directly benefit lrom goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. T'axes and other items not properly inciuded arrrong
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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CI'|Y OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S TO BASIC F'INANCIAL STATE,MENTS (COI\T.)

September 30,2022

NOTE i: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIItS (CONT.)

Basis of Presentation (Cont.)

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial
management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Separate statements are presented for governmental and
proprietary activities. These statements present each major lund as a separate column on the fund financial
statements; all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The
measurement focus of the governmental funds is on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.

The City has presented the lollowing major governmental fund:

General Fund - General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. This lund is used to account lor all
financial resources not accounted lor in other funds. All seneral tax revenues and other receipts that are not
restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other lund are accounted lor in this fund. General
operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are

paid from the General Fund.

Additionally, the government reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Capital Project Funds Capital Projects Funds are used to account lor financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction olmajor capital lacilities (other than those financed by proprietary and trust funds).

Debt Service Funds Debt Service l"unds are used to account lor the accumulation olresources for, and the
payment of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Special Revenue Funds Special Revenue Funds are used to account lor the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than special assessments or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures lor
specified purposes.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis ol
accounting. The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial position and cash flow. A11 assets

and liabilities are included on the Statement of Net Position.

The City has presented the lollowing major proprietary funds:

Utility Fund - Utility l"und is used to account lor the provision ol water and sewer services to the residents ol
the City. Activities of the fund include administration, operations and maintenance of the water and sewer

system and billing and collection activities. 'Ihe fund also accounts for the accumulation olresources for, and
the payment ol, Iong-term debt principal and interest for water and sewer debt. All costs are financed through
charges to utility customers with rates reviewed regularly and adjusted ilnecessary to ensure integrity of the
lunds.

Sanitation Fund'- Sanitation Fund is used to account for the revenues and expense associated with providing
garbage removal services to the citizens of the City ol Brownwood as well as the operation of the municipal
solid waste landfill. All costs are financed through charges to customers.

Airport Fund - Airport Fund is used to account for the operation of the Brownwood Regional Airport. All
costs are financed through fuel sales and services to customers which include hanger rentals. Major funding'
has been provided by state and lederal grants.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result lrom providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a

proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations, Operating expenses lor the proprietary funds include all cost ol
personnel and contractual services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S'I'O BASIC FINANC IAL S'I'ATEMENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2022

NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE,S (CONT'.)

Measurcment Focus,/Basis oFAccounting

Measurement locus refers to what is being measure d; basis of accounting re fers to when revenues and expenditures
are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis ol accounting relates to the timing of
the measurement made, regardless of the measurement locus appiied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for the proprietary lund are reported using the
economic resources measurement locus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic rcsources measurement
focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position
and the operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under thc
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned. Expenses are recognized at the time the liability
is incurred.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement locus and
are accounted lor using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e., when they become both measurable and available,
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities ol the current period. The City considers
prope rty taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days alter year end. A one-year availability period is used
lor recognition of all other Governmental Fund revenues. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability
is incurred. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, lranchise fees, licenses, charges lor service, interest income
and intergovernmental revenues. Sales taxes collected and held by the State at year end on behalf of the government
are also recognized as revenue. All other governmentai lund revenues are recognized when received.

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources (net position), the City's
policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and then toward unrestricted resources. In
governmental funds, the City's poiicy is to first apply the expenditure toward restricted lund balance and then to
other, less-restrictive classifications -'committed and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund
balances.

Budgets and Budggtary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements

L Prior to October l, the City Manager submits to the City Council the proposed operating budget lor the
upcoming fiscal year. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A public hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.
+. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund

and Proprietary Funds.

The City olBrownwood prepares its annual budget on a basis (budget basis), which diflers from generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP basis). The budget and all transactions are presented in accordance with the City's
method (budget basis) in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule General Fund to provide meaningful comparison of
actual results with the budget. The dillerences between budget basis and GAAP basis are shown in the Notes to
Budgetary Comparison Schedule.

Cash and Investments

For the purpose ol the Statement of Net Position "pooled cash and cash equivaients" includes all demand, savings
accounts and ce rtificates of deposit of the City. Investments consist of investments in public lunds investment pools
and are stated at cost which approximates lair market value. Cash of all lunds, including restricted cash, but excluding
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTI1S TO BASIC FINANCIAI, ST'A-I'F]ME,NTS (CONT.)

September 30,2022

NOTE, I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Cash and Investments (cont.)

debt service funds is pooled into common pooled accounts in order to maximize investment opportunities. Each
fund whose monies are deposited in the pooled account has an equity therein. An individual fund's pooled cash and

cash investments are available upon demand and are considered to be cash equivalents.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market. Inventories of the general fund and proprietary funds
consist of supplies held for consumption.

Interfund Receivables and Payabies

Any residual balance outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
governmental-wide financial statements as "internal balances".

Transactions Between liunds

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in the results of operations of both
Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received.
Allowances lor uncollected accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts
receivable. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include ad valorem and sales taxes. Business-

type activity receivable baiances are from utility sales.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and inlrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and in the lund
financial statements lor proprietary funds. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost
il actual historical cost is not avaiiable. Donated assets are valued at their lair market value on the date donated.
Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenses. Renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Assets are capitalized that have an original cost of $5,000 or more and over three years of useful life. Depreciation
has been calculated on each class of depreciable property using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are
as lollows:

Buildings 10-40 Years
Infrastructure 10-40 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3- 10 Years
Improvements 10-20 Years

Improvements and equipment for each cell at the City's landfiii are depreciated over the time period that each cell
is receiving solid waste.

Compensated Absences

The City Council has adopted a policy whereby employees are paid lump sum payments lor vacation, sick leave and
holiday leave if they leave City employrnent. Upon termination, up to twenty-seven days of accumulated vacation
at lull pay, up to forty-five days of accumulated sick Ieave at full pay and up to ten days of accumulated holiday leave
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, 'Iexas

TO BASI

September 30,2022

NOTE l: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAN'I ACCOUN'I'ING POLICIES (CONT.)

Compensated Absences (cont.)

will be paid if the employee meets the prescribed conditions. Civil service employees are paid up to twenty-seven
days olaccumulated vacation for police and up to forty-five days of accumulated vacation lor firefighters, up to ninety
days of accumulated sick leave and up to ten days of accumulated holiday leave.

Use olEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conlormity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimatcs and assumptions that a{Iect the reported amounts olassets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could difler from those estimates.

Net

Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components:
r Net investment in capital assets consist olhistorical cost olcapital assets less accumulated depreciation and

less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to finance those assets plus deferred outflows ol
resources less delerred inflows of resources related to those assets.

r Restricted net position consist ol assets that are restricted by the City's creditors, by enabling legislation,
by grantors and by other contributors.

o Unrestricted all other net position is reported in this category.

Governmental Fund Balance

The City follows GASB No. 54 liund Balance Reporting and Gouernmental Fund Type Definitions which provides clearly
defined lund baiance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government's fund
balance more transparent. The lollowing classifications describe the reiative strength of the spending constraints
placed on the purposes lor which resources can be used:

r Nonspendable fund balancc amounts that are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained
intact

r Restricted lund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers, through constitutional
provisions, or by enabling legislation.

o Committed fund balance - amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itsel{, using its highest
level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts cannot be used lor any other
purpose unless the government takes the same highest levei action to remove or change the constraint

. Assigned fund balance amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed
by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delesates the authority

e Unassigned lund balance amounts that are available lor any purpose; positive amounts are reported only
in the general fund

City Council establishes fund balance commitments by passage of an ordinance or resolution. Assigned fund balance
is established by City Council through adoption or amendment of the budge t as intended lor specific purposes.

Deferred Inflows,/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for delerred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, defcrred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a luture period and so will not be recognized as an outflow olresources
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CITY OIT BROWN,VOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, -fexas

NOI'ES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)
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NOTE I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)

Delerred Inflows,/ of Resources (cont.)

(expenses/expenditure) until then. The City has one item that qualifies lor reporting in this category. Accordingly,
this item, amounts related to pensions, is reported on the government wide statement olposition.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section lor delerred inflows ol
resources. This separate financial statement element, delerred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a luture period and so will not be recognized as an inflow ol resources (revenue) until that
time. The City has lour items that qualily for reporting in this category. Three of the items, amounts related to
pensions, amounts related to leases and amounts related to bond refunding, are reported on the government wide
statement of position. The amount related to ieases is also reported on the governmental lunds balance sheet. The
City has another item which arises only under a modified accrual basis ol accounting that qualifies lor reporting in
this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported oniy in the governmental funds balance sheet.
These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become
available.

Delerred outflows of resources are used to report consumptions of net position by the City that are applicable to a
future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are used to report acquisitions of net position by the City that
are applicable to future reporting periods. The deferred inflow is reclassified to revenue on the government-wide
financial statements.

Esrsrpns

For purposes olmeasuring the net pension liability, delerred outflows of resources and delcrred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, inlormation about the fiduciary net position and additions toldeductions
lrom hduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the respective fiduciary.
For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized in the period that compensation is reported for the employee,
which is when contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at lair value.

NOTE 2: PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes are levied by October 1, in conlormity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February l, of the year following the year in which
imposed. OnJanuary 1, of each year) a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties,
and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they become due or past due
and receivable within the current period or expected to be collected during the sixty-day period after the close olthe
fiscal year.

NOTE 3 DEPOSI'IS AND INVE,STMENTS

The City places its investable funds in investments authorized by Texas law (The Public Funds Investment Act-
Government Code Chapter 2256)in accordance with investment policies approved by the City Council of the City.
Both state law and the City's investment policies are subject to change. Under T'exas law and City policy, the City
is required to invest its funds under written investment policies that primarily emphasize safety of principal and
liquidity and that address investment diversification, yield, maturity and the quality and capability of investment
management. All City lunds must be invested in a manner that provides the highest investment return with the
maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the City. The objectives of the City's investment
policy are safety, availability, diversification and highest rate olreturn. The Public Funds Investment Act requires
the City to have independent auditors perform test procedures reiated to investment practices approved by the Act.
The City is in substantial compliance with the requirements olthe Act and with local policies.
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NOTE 3: DEPOSITS AND INVE,STMENTS (CONT.)

Legal Investments

The City is authorized by statute to invest in (a) U.S. Treasury Bills and Notes, (b) Repurchase Agreements with a

maximum maturity at purchase of 90 days and an average maturity atany point in time not exceeding 30 days, (c)

Certificates of Deposit with a maturity of one year or less insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or
collateralized by pledged securities, (d) Government/Private Sponsored Investment Funds, I Notes ol the Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association, Student Loan Marketing Association,
Federal F-arm Credit Bank and Federal Home Loan lJank with a maximum maturity of 2 years and average maturity
not exceeding I year, (f) no load Money Market Mutual lrunds with doliar weighted average maturity of 90 days or
less and maintenance ola stable net asset value of $ I per share and no load Mutual Funds with an average weighted
maturity of less than 2 years rated no less than AAA, (g) Commercial Paper with a maturity ol less than 270 days
and rates not less than A- I or P- I , (h) Bankers Acceptances with an maturity of 27 0 days or lcss, (i) GNMA Se curitics
with a stated final maturity of l0 years or less and (j) Direct Obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies.

Custodial Credit Risk

City funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract and investment policy
pursuant to state statute. The depository bank deposits for salekeeping and trust with its agent approved pledged
securities authorized by Government Code Chapter 2257 Collateral for Public Funds in an amount sufficient to
protect City lunds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge ol approved securities is

waived only to the extent ol the dollar amount ol Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance.
Custodiai credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to
it. At September 30, 2022,fi|,235,335, olthe City's deposit balances were exposed to custodial credit risk by being
uninsured by IrDIC but collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's agent not in the City's
name.

Interest Rate Risk

Iror short term liquidity requirements, the City utilized two local government investment pools. 'IexPool is managed
by Federated Hermes, Inc. for the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts and was created to invest funds on behalf
of T'exas political subdivisions. The pool operates on a $ I net asset vaiue basis and allows same day or next day
redemptions and deposits. At September 30,2022, TexPool's portlolio maintained a weighted average maturity of
approximately 25 days. The other local government investment pool utilized by the City is TexStar which is

managed by HilltopSecurities andJP Investment Management, Inc. At September 30,2022, TexStar's portlolio
maintained a weighted average maturity of approximately l6 days. TexPool and TexStar's investment policies limit
the weighted average maturity to 60 days. 'Ihe pools do not invest in derivatives. In order to maintain a stable $ I

price olthe funds, the pools will sell portfoiio holdings if the ratio of the market value of the portlolio divided by the
book value olthe portlolio is less than .995 or greater than I.005. The $l price is not guaranteed or insured by the
State of Texas, the Comptroller of Public Accounts, the pools or their administrators.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. State law
and City policy limit investments in local government investment pools to those rated no lower than AAA or an
equivalent rating by at least one nationally recognized rating agency. At Septemb er 30, 2021 , the City's investme nts
in TexPool and TexStar were both rated AAAm by Standard and Poor's.
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NOTE 3: DIIPOSITS AND INVE,STMENTS (CONI'.)

Cash lor Cash Flows Statcment

Proprietary funds cash and cash equivalents at September 30,2022 are as follows:

Utility
Fund

Szrrr it:rtio n
Fund

Airport
Funcl

Poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnts
Non poolcd czrsh and cash cquivalcnts
Rcstrictcd cash

-Ibral

$ 1,t57,706 $
L 49.)

1,1 r 3,530 $

650
(6,470)

400
316 244 2+7 959

$ 2,478,8 72 $ l 362 (6,070)139 $

NOTE, 4: RESTRICI'ED ASSETS

Certain cash balances and investments are restricted by constraints externally imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, laws or rezulations. The following is a summary olrestricted asscts grouped by restriction at September
30,2022:

Govc rnmc n tal
Activitics

13usi ncss-typc

Activitics
Componcnt

Unit - IIVIDD

Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
I{cstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd
Rcstrictcd

I 1 3,066 $

1,872
23,37 7

22,BBO

2,459
46,393

3 19,656
I 1,791

38,954
| 52,087

4,s I 3,086

firr clcbt scrvicc p:rymcnts
lor drug zi"warcncss cducrtion
lor law cnfttrccmcnt
lor vchicula.r child salcty

ftrr bcautification
ftrr mutricipirl court
ftrr Lourism pr<tmoti<tn
lor Lchnis Muscum
lor F:rbis Park
frrr construction or purchasc o1'fixcd asscts

fbr grant cxpcnditurcs
firr customcr dcposiLs

T<rtal Rcstrictcd Asscts

$ 220.547 $

231,542 3,90 1,157

127 197

$ 5,24s,62 r $ 1.57 9,286 $ 3,90 1,157

Re stricted asse ts in the City inch"rded fi2,27 5,391 in cash and $4,549,5 16 in invcstments. Restricted assets in BMDD
included $49,418 in cash and $3,851,739 in investmcnts.

NOT'E 5: LEASES

For the year ended September 30,2022, the financial statements include the adoption of GASB No. B7 bases. The
primary objective of this statement is to enhance the relevance and consistency of inlormation about government's
leasing activities. This statement establishes as single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases
are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow olresources.

The City has entered into multiple lease agreements as lessor which allow the right-to-use of land and buildings to
other individuals and organizations over the terms of the lease . The City receives payments at the interest rate stated
or implied within the leases. The interest rate lor these leascs is the City's incremcntal borrowing rate. Total leases
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NOT'E 5: LtrASES (CONI'.)

receivableatSeptember30,2022amountto$293,5 l2andareincludedinreceivablesinNotc6. Total defcrred
inflows on these leases at September 30,2022 amount to $298,6 11 and the City recognized lease revenue of $99,477
and interest revenue of$2,623 during the fiscal year.

F'uture payments on these lcases are as lollows:

Ycar Endine Scptcmbcr 30,
Govcrnmcnterl Activitics

Principal Intcrcst
Busincss-Typc Activitics

Principal Intcrcst
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2028-2032
'lirtal

$ 50,829 $

5t,2t2
3 7,668
, lr4
2,t45

949
567
t92
65

43

66

JJ,/JJ S

32,26+
JJ,l /O

23,497

2,858

t,209
7Bt
472
t67
60
qq

$

IB4

$ 145,162 $ I ,BB2 $ 148,35 I $ , 71'

'I'he City is also thc iessee lor a number olvehicles. 'I'he value ollease right-to-use assets and the related accumulated
amortization is dctailed in Note B. 'I'he details ol the lease liability and principal and interest requirements to
maturity are provided in Note 1 l.

NOTE,6: RE,CEIVABLES

A sr-rmmary of the nct receivables at September 30,2022 is as foilows:

Govcrnmcntal
Activitics

Busincss-typc

Ar:tivilir:s
Componcnt

Ilnit - BVIDI)
Ad v:rlorcm urxcs

Salcs taxcs

tJtitity
Warr:rnts and citzrtions

Airpr>rt
Gr:rnLs rcccivablc
PII,OT paymcnts
Othcr rcccivablcs
Lcascs rcccivablc
Notcs rcccivablc

Lcss irllowancc lor uncollcctablc accounts
Rcccivablcs, nct

$ 331,120 $

t,t82,428

369,430

4l8,076
24t,7 47

504, I BB

t45,l6l
I I 1,000

2,283,27 5

t6,27 4
25,BB7

1 98,1 70

148,35 I

3 79,998

37,s00

$

$ 3,303, I s0 $

(386,912)
2,67 t ,9s7 $

(7 15,678)
+t7 ,498

$ 2,9 16,238 $ r,956,279 $ 4r7,498

NOTE, 7: I,ANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE, CARE, COSTS

Statc and Federal laws and regulations require that the City of lJrownwood place a final cover on its landfill when
closed and perlorm certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure.
In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense provision and related Iiability
are being recognized based on the future closurc and postclosure care costs that will be incurred near or alter the
clate the landfill no longer accepts wastc. The recognition of these landfill closure and postclosure care costs is based
on the amount of the landfill use during the ye ar.

'fhe estimated liability lor landfill closure and postclosure care costs has a balance of $7,646, 133 as olSeptember
30,2022 which is based on 3l.460/o usage (filled) of the overall landfill. It is estimated that an additional fig,+17 ,7 +9
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NOTE 7: I-ANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE, COSI'S (CONT.)

will be recognized as closure and postclosure care expenses between the date ol the balance sheet and the date the
landfill is expected to be filled to capacity (2110). 'I'he estimated total current cost of the landfill closure and
postclosure care, $17,063,882, is based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, lacilities and services
required to close, monitor and maintain the landfill were acquired as of September 30, 2022. However, the actual
cost of closure and postclosure care may be higher due to inflation, changcs in technolosv, or changes in landfill laws
and regulations.

Based on the latest permit modification dated November 22, 1999 the City's financial assurance requirement is

$ I 1,035,867 and is being met by thc government financial test specified in 30 TAC Chapter 37 .211.

NOTE, B: CAPITAL ASSET.S

Capital asset activity in the City lor the year ended September 30,2022 is as follows:

Bcginning
Balirncc Incrcascs Dccrcitscs

tinding
Balancc

Govcrnmcntal Activitics:
Capital asscts not bcing dcprccizrtcd:

Land
Construction in proercss

Ttrurl czrpital asscts nor bcing dcprcciatcd

Capiurl asscts bcing dcprcciatcd:
Building and ,:Rrunds
Improvcmcnts
M achinc ry /cqu ipmc nt
lnkrnsiblc asscts

T<rurl capitzrl asscts bcins dcprcciatcd and zrmortizcd

Lcss accumul:rtcd dc p rcciation :rnd amo rtizzrtion :

Buildings
Impr()vcmcnts
Machinc ry,/cquipmc nt
Inurngiblc asscts

'l-o krl accumu latcd dcprcci:rtion :rnd :rmr> rtizatio n

'lotal Capital Asscts Bcing Dcprccizttcd and Amortizcd, Nct

Intangiblc right-to-usc asscts:

Lcascd cquipmcnt
Lcss accumulaLcd amortiza(ion

Nc t inurngiblc risht-to-usc asscts

GovcrnmcnLrl Activitics Capital Asscts, Nct

S 3,050,291
l,238,092

S 4,288,383

s 404,049 S s 3,+5+,3+O
+77 7952 (382,845) J.JJJ ,0+2

s 2 ,BB l ,844 S (3 82,B4 s) S 6,7 87 ,382

s 16,633,979 S

66,006,25 9

t6,6+7,965
l ,361 ,145

884,372
1,630,638

(70,880) S

( r62,483)
(3,331,78s)

(l 3,390)

16,563,099
66,728,t+B
14,94.6,8 I B

I ,347 ,7 55

S

s 100,649,348

s (7,43 r ,38 l)
(44,6s0,0s4)
(13,683,683)

(865,862)

(++t,2o9) s 70,879 S

(t,672,822) t62,+a3
(B7 r,l87) 2,392,s4s

(39,s 7 3) I 3,390

s 2,s r 5,0 l0 s (3,578,s38) s 99,585,820

S (7,80 l,7l l)
(46, r 60,393)
(t2,t62,325)

(892.045)

s (66,630,980) S (3,o2+,79t) S 2,639,297 S (67.O16,+7 +)

s 34..0 I 8,368 S (s09,78r) S (939.24r) S 32,569,3+6

S S r,770,293 S

(490.593)
s |,770,293

(490,s93)
S s 1.279 ,700 s s r,279,700

I 38,306,7s 1 S 3,65 1,763 S (l,322,086) S 40.636 ,+28

JJ



NOTE B: CAPITALASSETS (CONT.)

Busincss-typc Activitics:
Capital asscts not bcing dcprtciatcd:

Land
Construction in progrcss

Total apital asscts not bcing dcprcciarcd

Capital asscls bcing dcprcciatcd and amortizcd:
Building and grounds
Imprr;vcmcnts
Landfill ccll dcvclopmcnt
Machincry/cquipmcnt
Intaneiblc asscts

Tbtal capital asscts bcing dcprcciatcd and :rmor'tizcd

Lcss accumulatcd dcprcciation and amortization:
Buildings
Improvcme nts
Landfi ll ccll dcvclopmcnt
Machi nc ry /cqui p mcnt
Inurngiblc asscts

Tkrtal accumulatcd dcprcciatio n and amortization

Tfrurl Capial Asscts Bcing Dcprcciatcd and Amorrizcd, Nct

Inu,rngiblc dght-to-usc asscts:

Lcascd cquipmcnt
Lrss accum ulatcd amonizadon

Nct intangiblc light-to-usc asscts

Busincss-typc Acrivitics Capiurl Asscts, Nct

CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

September 30,2022

Bcginning
Balancc

ONT

Incrcascs Dccrcascs
Ilnding
Balancc

S 383,35 r

t48,621
S S s 383,35 I

.).1 t++ (9+,275) B7 490
s 531,972 S 33,144 S (94.275) S 470,84t

s 3,48+,+34 S

85,635,426
12,836,8s8
t7,772,75t

493,O54

9+,27 5

569, I 76

(l6,8l2) S

(t27,83+)

(r,567,640)

3,+67,622
85,601 ,867
12,836,858
16,77 4,287

S

+93 054
s 120,222.s23 S 663.45 1 S (r.7 12.286\ S l 19,173,688

s (3,163,371) S

(6 1 ,502, 1 47 )

(7,939,164)
(14,6 l 1,899)

(367,63s)

(64,048) S

( r ,283,2 l0)
(39s,s46)

( 1,052,664)
(41,80s)

l6,8 l2 S

t27,834
(3,2 10,607)

(62,657,523)
(8,334,7 r 0)

(t+,2to,6+3)I,+s3,920
4+O)

s (87,s84,2 r 6) S e,837 ,273) s r,598,566 S (88,822,923)

s 32,638,307 S (2,173,822) S (l 13,720) s 30.350,765

S S | 4s,94+ S

(5 l ,2 l8)
S t+5,9++

(s I ,2 l8)
S S 9+,726 S S 9+,726

s 33.1 70,279 S (2,045,952) S (207,995) s 30,9 16,332

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to the following functions:

Covcrnmcntal Activitics:
Gcncml govcmmcnt
Policc
Iri rc

Dcvclopmcnt scruiccs
Strcct
Hcalth
Community lacilitics
Parks and rccrcation
Public works

s 650,3 13

337,+82
32+,824
28,28+

l ,382,01 1

9,164
201,173
534,550
47,583

s 3,5 1 5,384

806,043
289,925
213,700
860,6s0
395,546
322,627

Busincss-typc Activitics:
Wale r
\ y'astc watcr
\ y'astc watcr trcatmcnt
Sanitation
Landfill
Airport

S 2,888,49 I

NOTE 9: INTERNAL BAT-ANCES AND TRANSFERS

Internal balances are short-term Ioans to cover temporary cash dehcits in various funds. At September 30,2022,
the Debt Service Funds owed General Fund $55,330.

Transfers to./from other funds during the year ended September 30, 2022 consist of $59,556 of transfers lrom
General Fund to the Debt Service Funds for debt service requirements.

3+
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE

September 30,2022

NOTE l0: U'|ILITY

The Utility f)epartment was serving the following number of customers:

9/30/22 9/30/21
Water Department
Sewer Department
Sanitation Department

7,535
7,0+0
7,239

Additions

7,6+7
7,132
7,307

NOTE 1 i: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
'I'he following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations lor the year ended September 30,2022:

Bcginning
Balancc Rcductions

Ending
Balancc

Duc Within
Onc Ycar

Govcrnmcntal Activi tics:
Bonds, N()tcs :rnd Lcascs Payablc:

Ccrtificatcs ol obligation
Gcncral oblieation bonds
Tax notc payablc
Dincct borrowings and dircct placcmcnts:

Gcncrzrl obligation bonds
Notcs p:iy:rblc
Lcascs payablc

$ 7, I 6s,000 $

2,920,000
3+3,315

1,300,255
1,15 1 ,802

6,830,000
I ,3+5,826

585,8 l5

(7,r6s,000) $

(320,000)
(54,8 1s)

(170,000)
(57 2,e55)
(+82,7 tO)

2,600,000
288,500

6,660,000
2,O73,126
| ,25+,907

330,000
54,8 l5

6 1 5,000
6BB,6BB

547,BtO

$ $

$ 12,880,372 $ 8,761,6+t $ (8,76s,480) $
(r 02,48s)

t2,87 6,s33 $

1 63,920
2,236,3t3

Bond prcmiurns
T<rtal Bonds, Notcs irnd Lcascs

Payablc

Compcnsatcd abscnccs
T<ltal Govc mmcntal A<:tivi tit:s

Busincss-typc Activi tics:
Bonds, Notcs and Lcascs Payablc

Ccrtifi catcs of obl igzLtion

Gcncral obligation bonds
-Ihx notc payablc
Dircct borrowings:
Notcs payablc
l,cascs pa-yablc

Ilond prcmiums
Total Bonds, Notcs and Lczrscs

Payablc

Compcnsatcd abscnccs
Total Busi ncss- typc Activi tics

66 405

fi t3,t+6,777

2,099,530
$ 15,246,307

$ 8,761,64 l $ (8,86 7,965) $

(1,14+,946)

t3,o+o,453 $

2,160,652

2,236,3t3

l ,385,092I,206,068
$ 9,967,709 $ (10,0 12,9r r) $ 15.201 ,105 $ 3,62 1,405

$ 6,635,000 $

2,995,000
251,685

3,665,750 68 I,684 (974,788)
(s0,872)

$ (310,000) $

(620,000)
(40,l8s)

6,325,000 $

2,37 5,OOO

21 1,500

3,372,6+6

320,000
645,000

40, I 85

145 944 95 072
9+9,127

51,0s8
$ 13,693,379 $ 68 I,684 $ (1,99s,84s)

(5s,633) OI 629
fi 12,379,2t8 $ 2,00s,370

r47 262

$ 13,840,64 I $

249,7 58

68 l,684 $

+70,202

(2,O5t,+78)

(466,898)

$ 1 2,470,847 $ 2,OO5,370

17 3,O7 8253 062
$ 14.090 ,399 $ 1,151,886 $ (2,5 I8,376)

$ (12,s31,287)

909 $ 2, t7B,++8$ 12 723

,706 $ 1r,1t9,595Total Primary Covcmmcnt $ 29.336
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S T'O BASIC FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2022

NO'|E 1l: LONG-TERM OBLIGA'IIONS (CONT.)

Long-term obligations for the component unit BMDD at September 30,2022 are as lollows

Bonds and lcasc payablc:
Salcs tax rcvcnuc bonds
l,casc pzryablc

Total Bonds and Lcasc Payablc

Compcnszttcd abscnccs
Tot:rl

Gcncral obligation rclunding bonds:
Scrics 20 I 5
Scrics 2020 - Govcmmcntal portion
Scrics 202 1

$ $ s,070,000 $ $ 5,070,000 $ 280,000
1 s,296

$ 29s,296
+6,355 (l s,600) 30 755

$ 46,355

9,643 l5 467

( r s,600) $

(8.+20]l

5, 1 00,7 55

16,690 12,8 l9

$ s,070,000 $

$ 55,998 $ 5,08s,467 $ (24,020) $ s.l 17 ,+45 $ 308,1 15

Governmental Activitres

General obligation bonds and certificates olobligation provide funds for the acquisition and construction olmajor
capital equipment and facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations issued on a pledge of the general
taxing powers lor the payment of debt obligations of the City. General obligation bonds and certificates of obligation
require the City to set aside each year a portion of the taxes levied in a fund to pay interest and principal at maturity.
The City is in compliance with this requirement. Combination tax and revenue bonds are payable from either ad
valorem taxes levied, with the limits prescribed by laws, or payable from and secured by the surplus net revenues of
the City's water and sewer system as provided in the ordinances authorizing their issuance. Tax notes are used to
fund specific projects and are generally repaid from tax revenues over shorter periods oltime .

On December 16,2021, the City issued $6,830,000 Generai Obligation Relunding Bonds, Series 202 I with an interest
rate of 1.690/o and a final maturity on March 15,2032. The City issued the bonds to refund the $6,630,000 outstanding
balance olCombination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Oblisation, Series 20 l2 with interest rates from 2.0o/o to +.125oh.
The refundins reduced total debt service payments over the next eleven years by fi776,259. This results in an economic
gain (difference between present value of the debt service payments on the old and the new debt) of $696,466.

A summary of the bonds follows:

Datc of Issuc
Origirral
Am()unt

Intc rcst

Ratc
lr'Iatu ri tv

Dntc

Amorrnt
OuLstandins
9/30/2022

10/15/2015
9/ 17 /2020
t2/ t6/2021

2,250,000
2,480,000
6,830,000

O.+5 to 2.2o/o

3%o

2o/o

3/ 15/2026
3/15/3031
3/15/3032

5 10,000
2,090,000
6,660,000

$ $

The following represents the future maturities on these bonds

Ycar Endi ng Scptcmbcr 30.

$ 9,260 ,000

Pdncipzil In tc rcst Total
$ 94s,000

965,000
990,000

r,000,000
895,000

4,465,000

$2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2028-2032
Tfrtal

17 6,450 $

157,t73
t37 ,3 t3
1 16,952
97,595

209,395

1,I 2 1,450
I,r22,t73
1,127 ,3t3
i,l 16,952

992,s9s
+,67 +,395

36

$ 9.260 ,000 $ 894,878 $ 10,rs4,878
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NOTE I l: LONG-TERM OIILIGATIONS (CONT.)

Governmental Activities (cont.)

A summary olthe tax note follows:

Datc ol Issuc

Original
Amount

Intc rcst
Ratc

Maturity
Datc

Amount
Outstanding
9/30/2022

Tax Notc, Taxablc Scrics 2020
Govcrnmcntal portion
Busincss-typc portion

7 /23/2020
7 /23/2020

$ 395,245
289 755

1.507o

1.507o

3 / 15 /2027
3/t5/2027

$ 2BB,s00
2l 1,500

$ 500,000

Total

$ 68s,000

The following represents the future maturities on the governmental portion of this tax note:

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Intcrcst
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Total

$ 54.,B l5 $

57,700
57,700
57,700
60,58s

3,916
3,072
2,207
t,3+2

454

s8,731
60,772
59,907
59,O+2

$

6l 039

$ 288,500 $ lo,99l $ 299,491

Notes payable are used to finance asset acquisitions and improvements needed in the governmental operations of the
City. The notes are secured by equipment. A summary olnotes payabie follows:

In tc rcst
Ralt:

Citizcns National Bank 620lo WSJ Primc

The following represents the future maturities on governmental notes payable:

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal

Maluritv
f)alr:

Amorrnl
OuLstanding
9/30/2022

2023-2027 $ 2,073,126

Intc rcst Total
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Total

$ $6BB,6BB

527,8s3
4 i 5,060
266,916
t7 4,609

69,842 $

44,969
26,902
12,965

758,530
572,822
441 ,962
2 79,88 I
177,97r3623

Leases payable are used to finance vehicles used in the governmental operations of the City. The following represents
the future maturities on governmental leases payable:

Ycar Endine Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Intcrcst T<rtal

$ 2,073,126 $ 158,040 $ 2,23 r,166

$2023
2024
2025
2026
TcrLrl

4,799
2,3r4

a67
102

552,609
4t6,1t2
227,Ara

66 450

547,810 $

413,7 98
226,9sr

66,348

$

3l

$ l,254,907 $ 8,082 $ I,262,989
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NOTE I i: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT.)

Business-type activities

The City makes use of general obligation bonds and certificates of obligation as well as tax notes in the business-type
actrr,rtres,

A summary of the bonds follows

Datc ol Issur:

Original
AmounL

Intcrcst
Ratc

Maturity
Datc

Amount
Outstanding
9/30/2022

Combination tax and rcvcnuc
ccrtifi catcs of oblieation:

Scrics 2012.4'
Scrics 2015

Gcncral obligation rcfunding bonds,
Scrics 2020 - Busincss-typc portion

12/ 1/20t2
10/15/20r5

9/ t7 /2020

3,440,OOO

4,815,000
1.96 Lo 4.640/0

2.95o/"
3/t5/2044
9/30/2035

3/15/303t

Intc rcst

2,875,000
3,450,000

375 000

$ 8,700,000

Total

$ $

3,600,000 3%o

Principal

2

The lollowing represents the future maturities on these bonds

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30,
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042
2043-20++

Tkrtal

$

$ 8,700,000 $ 2,7 15,997 $ l1,4rs,997

965,000 $

995,000
1,03s,000

590,000
420,000

1,855,000
I ,6 10,000

840,000
390,000

28+,7 10 $

2s4,753
223,703
238,842
219,396
857,+97
+27,615
l9l ,153

l8,328

I ,2+9,7 rO
t ,249,7 53
t,258,703

B2B,a42
639,396

2,7 t2,497
2,037,6t5
1,03 I,153

408,328

40,185 $

42,300
42,300
42,300
44,+t5

2,a7 1 $

2,2s2
1 ,618

984
J J.'

43,056
44,552
43,9 I B

43,284
44,7 4a

A summary olthe tax note is presented above. -fhe following represents the future maturities on the business-type
portion of this tax note:

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Intcrcst Total
2023
2024
202s
2026
2027
Total

Amount
Outstanding
9/30/2022

$

$ 21 r,s00 $ 8,058 $ 2rg,ss8

Notes payable are used to finance asset acquisitions and improvements needed in the business-type operations of the
City. The notes are secured by equipment. A summary of notes payable follows:

Intc rcst

Ratc
Maturity

Datc

Cilizr:ns National Bank

3B

6204 WSJ Primc 2023-2027 $ 3,372,646



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

September 30,2022

NOTE I l: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONT.)

Business-type activities (cont.)

The lollowing represents the future maturities on business-type notes payable:

Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal
$

IntcFcst 'Iotal

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Total

949,r27
766,662
830, I 78

6A6,487
140,192

116,322
8l ,648
s4,569
23,759

J.J JO

1,065,449
848,3 10

884,7 47

7 to,246

$ $

143 528

fi 3,372,646 $ 279,634 $ 3,6s2,280

f,eases payable are used to finance vehicles used in the business-type operations of the City. The following represents

the future maturities on business-type leases payable:

YczLr Ending Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Intr: rcst Total
2023
2024
2025
Total

$ 5 r,058 $

30,096
r 3.918

343 $

r24
JJ

51,401
30,220
I 3,95 I

$ 9s,072 $ s00 $ 95,572

BMDD

On April 6, 2022, the BMDD issued $5,070,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2022 to provide funds lor the

construction of a multi-purpose event center lor the City. The bonds are secured by a pledge of sale s tax revenue.

A summary of the bonds foilows:

Datc of Issuc Amount
Original In tc rcst

Rzrtc

Maturity
Datc

Amount
Outstanding
9/30/2022

Salcs tax rcvcnuc bonds, scrics 2022 4/6/2022 $ 5,070,000

The following represents the future maturities on these bonds
Ycar Ending Scptcmbcr 30,

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2028-2032
2033-2037

Total

2023
202+
T<rtal

LB7 to 3.28o/o 3/15/2037 $ 5,070,000

Principal Intc rcst T<rtal

$ 280,000
285,000
290,000
300,000
305,000

1,675,000
I,935,000

I 41 ,699 $

l 3s,804
l28,B57
t2I,259
r 13,120
+26,414
157.942

+21,699
+20,8O4
418,857
+2t,259
418,120

2,tor,41+
2,O92,942

$

$s ooo $ 1,225,09s $ 6,295,095

BMDD leases office space under a long-term lease payable. The following represents future maturities on this lease

payable:

Ycar Endine Scptcmbcr 30, Principal Tot;ll
$ 15,296

15,459

In l-c rcst

$ 304
141

$ I 5,600
1s.600

39

$ 30.7s5 $ ++5 $ 31,200
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NOTE 12: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PI-AN

The City of Brownwood participates in three pension plans. Two are administered by Texas Municipal Retirement
System (TMRS), Plan 10190 City and 30190 Health Department, and one is administered by Brownwood
Firefighter's Relief and Retirement Fund.

TMRS Plan Descriptions

The City of Brownwood participates as two of the 90 1 plans in the defined benefit cash-balance plan administered
by the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS). TMRS is a statewide public retirement plan created by the
State of Texas and administered in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Title B, Subtitle G, (the TMRS
Act) as an agent multiple-employer retirement system lor employees of 'fexas participating cities. The TMRS Act
places the general administration and management of TMRS with a six-member, Governor-appointed Board ol
Trustees; however, TMRS does not receive any lunding lrom the State of Texas. TMRS issues a publicly available
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report) that can be obtained at tmrs.com.

All eligible employees of the city are required to participate in TMRS.

Benefits Provided

TMRS provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are adopted by the governing body of
the city, within the options available in the state statutes governing TMRS.

At retirement, the membe r's benefit is calculated based on the sum of the member's contributions with interest, the
city-financed monetary credits with interest and their age at retirement and other actuarial factors. The retiring
member may select one of seven monthiy benefit payment options. Members may also choose to receive a portion
of their benefit as a lump sum distribution in an amount equal to 12,2+, or 36 monthly payments, which cannot
exceed 75% of the total member contributions and interest. Plan provisions for the City include an employee deposit
rate of 7o/o, a matching ratio (city to employee) ol 2 to I and five years olparticipation for vesting. Employees with
five years ol continuous service are eligible to retire at age 60. Employees may retire at any age after 20 years ol
continuous service.

At the December 31,2021 vaiuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Plan i0190 City 16l
Plan 30190 Health Department 12

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Plan 10190 City 95
Plan 30190 Health Department 2

Active employees
Plan 10190 City 220
Plan 30190 Heaith Department 2+

Contributions

Member contribution rates in TMRS are either 5o/o, 60/o, or 7o/o of the member's total compensation, and the city
matching percentages are either l:l (i to l), 1.5:l (l t/z to l), or 2:l (2 to i), both as adopted by the governing body
of the city. Under the state law governing TMRS, the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the
actuary, using the Entry Age Normal (EAN) actuarial cost method. The city's contribution rate is based on the
liabilities created lrom the benefit plan options selected by the city and any changes in benefits or actual experience
over time.

+o
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NOTE 12: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PI-AN (CONT.)

Plan 10190 City
Plan 30190 I-Icalth Dcpartmcnt

Contributions (cont.)

Employees lor the City of Brownwood were required to contribute 704 of their annual compensation during the
fiscal year. The contribution rates lor the City were as follows:

Calcndar Ycar
202t 2022

13.I lTo
I 1.53%

13.l lYo
12.O9%o

The city's contributions to TMRS for the year ended September 30,2022,1or Plan 10190 City and Plan 30190
Health Department were $1,365,299 and $93,270, respectively, and were equai to the required contributions.

Net Pension Liability

'lhe city's Net Pension Liability (NPL)was measured as olDecember 31,2021, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL)
used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions. The Total Pension Liability in the December 31 ,2021 acLuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions:

Inflation 2.5o/o per year

Overall payroll growth 2.75o/o per year, adjusted down lor population declines, ilany

Investment Rate of Return 6.75o/0, net olpension plan investment expcnse, including inflation

Salary increases were based on a service-related table. Mortality rates for active members are based on the PUB(10)
mortality tables with the Public Salety table used lor males and the Generai Employee table used for flemales.

Mortality rates lor healthy retirees and beneficiaries were based on the gender-distinct 2019 Municipal Retirees ol
Texas mortality tables. The rates lor actives, healthy retirees and beneficiaries are projected on a fully generational
basis by Scale UMP to account for future mortality improvements. For disabled annuitants, the same mortality tables
for healthy retirees are used with a 4-year set-forward lor males and a 3-year set-florward for females. In addition, a

3.5o/o and 3.00/o minimum mortality rate is applied, lor males and lemales respectively, to reflect the impairment for
younger members who become disabled. The rates are projected on a fully generational basis by Scale UMP to
account lor future mortality improvements subject to the floor.

'fhe actuarial assumptions were developed primarily lrom the actuarial investigation of the experience ol TMRS
over the four-year period lrom December 31, 2014 to December 31,2018. They were adopted in 2019 and first
use d in the l)ecember 3 1, 2019 actuarial valuation. The post-retirement mortality assumption lor Annuity Purchase
Rates (APRs) are based on the Mortality Experience Investigation Study covering 2009 through 20ll and dated
l)ecember 31,2013. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with an emphasis on both capital appreciation
as weli as the production of income in order to satisfy the short-term and long-term funding needs of TMRS.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected luture real rates ol return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation.

+t
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NOI-E, l2: DEFINED BENtrFIT PENSION P[-AN (CONT.)

Liabil r:ont

The target allocation and best estimates ol real rates of return for each major asset class in fiscal year 2022 are
summarizcd in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-'ferm Expected Real Rate of Return
(Arithmetic)

Global Public Equity 35.0% 7 .55o/o

Core Irixed Income 6.0o/o 2.00o/o

Non-Core Fixed Incorne 20.)Yo s.6B%
Other Public and Private
Markets

12.0o/o 7.22Yo

Real Estate 12.0o/o 6.85%
Hcdge Funds 5.00h 5.35o/o

Private Equity 10.0% 10.00%
'['otal i 00.00%

Discount Rate. T'he discount rate used to measure the f'otal Pension Liability was 6.7570. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that member and employer contributions will be made at the rates
speci{ied in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was projected to be available
to makc all projected luture benefit payments ol current activc and inactive Members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate ol return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the Total Pension Liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Incrcasc (Dccrcasc)

Ttrral Pcnsion Plan Fiduciary Nct Pcnsion
Nct Position (b) Liabiliry (a)-(b)Liabiliry (a)

Plan 10190 City
Balancc 12/31/2O2O
Changcs frrr thc ycirr:

Scrvicc cost

Intc rcst

l)ifl'crcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cxpcricncc
Co n tribu tio ns-c mployc r
Co ntributio ns-c m ployc c
Nct invcstmcnt incomc
Bcncllt paymcnts, including rclunds of cmploycc

cx>ntributions

Administrativc ('xp('nsc

Othcr changcs

Nct changcs

Balancc 12/31/2021

fi 57,163,2t4 $ 52,i1s7,986 $ 4

|,594,738 $

3,8 I I,985
706, l 60

(2,97 3,462)

1,330,331
7 r t,694

6,887,9 l B

(2,973,462)
(3 r,BB3)

2lB

305 228

t,594,738
3,8 I I ,985

706, I 60
(l,330,331)

(71t,694)
(6,887,91B)

3l,883
(218)

$ $

$ 3,139,42 I $ s,924,8r6 $ (2,78s,395)

42

$ 60,302,635 $ s8,782,802 $ 1,5 19,833
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NOTE 12: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION Pl-{N (CONT.)

Net Pension Liability [cont.)

Changes in net pension liability

Plan 30190 Flc:rlth Dcp:rrtmcnt
Balancc 12/31/2O2O
Changcs lor thc ycar:

Scrwicc cost
Intc rcst

l)iffcrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cxpcricncc
Changc in assrrmptions
Co n tribu tio ns-c mplo yc r
C<l n trib u tio ns-c m ploycc
Nct invcstmcnt incomc
Bcnclit paymcnLs, including rclunds o I cmploycc

contributions
Administrativc cxpcnsc
Othcr ch:rnecs

Nct changcs
Balancc 12/31/2O21

CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, 'Iexas

ANCIAL STATEME,NTS ON'T'

Tirtal Pcnsion
Liabiliry (a)

Incrcasc (Dccrcasc)

Plan Fiduciary
Nct Position (b)

Nct Pcnsion
Liabilitv (a)-(b)

$ 1,771,989 $ r,594,342 $ r77 ,6+7

$ 81,9 1s $

I t7 ,829
(7 8,033)

(1 34,66 1)

$ B r,9 l5
t 17,829
(7 8,03 3)

$ (l2,ss0) $ 173,525

63,5 I 5

3B,s6l
207,064

(1 34,66 I )

(e62)

B

(63,s l5)
(38,s61)

(2O7,06+)

962
(B)

$ ( I86,47s)
$ 1,7s9,039 $ t,767,867 $ (B,B2B)

SensitiuiE of the net pensinn liabiliE to changes in the discount rate. The lollowing presents the Net Pension Liability of the
City, calculated using the discount rate of 6.750/o, as well as what the City's Net Pension Liability would be ilit were
calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower (5.75%) or I percentage point higher (7 .75o/o) than
the current rate:

City's Net Pension Liabilitv
l7o Decrease in

Discount Rate (5.75%) Discount Rate (6.75%)
iolo Increase in Discount

Rate (7.75%)
Plan 10190 City $9,936,563 $ i ,5 19,833 $(s,362,e60)
Plan 30190 Health Department $2 19,379 $(B,B2B) $(197,849)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed inlormation about the pension plan's Fiduciary l{et Position is available
in the Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, by Participating City. That report may be obtained at
tmrs.com.
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NOTE, l2: DEITINED IIENEFIT PENSION PI-AN (CONT'.)

Plan 10190 City
Diffcrcnccs bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cconomic cxpcricncc
Charrgcs in actuiLrial assumptions
Diff'crcncc bctwccn pro.jcctcd and actual invcstrrlcnt carninss
Contributions subscqucnt to tht: mcasurcmcnt datc

T<>tal

Plan 30190 Ilcalth Dcp:rrtmcnt
l)i{l'crcnccs bctwccn cxpcctcd and zrctual cconomic cxpcricnct:
Chanqcs in a< tuarial assumptions
Di{It:rcncc bctwccn pro-jcctcd and :rctual invcstmcnt carnings
Contributions subscqucnl to thc mcasurcmcnt d:rtc
'Itrtal

Nct Dclcrrcd Outllows (Inflows) oIRcsourccs
Plan Yc:rr

2022
2023
2024
2025
ToLLI

and Dclerred

For the year ended Se ptember 30, 2021, the City recognized pension expense (income) of $(8,980). At Se ptember
30,2022, the City reported delerred outflows of resources and delerred inflows olresources related to pensions from
the lollowins sources:

Dclcrrcd
Outflows of
Rcso u rccs

Dclcrrcd
Inflows ol'
Rcsorr rr:cs

$ 3 r5,041 $

s,1 73

003 778
J,JJJ,J)',!

$ 1,323,992 $ 3,533,s54

It $

8,343

68,7 I B

34,565

to4,957

a 77,061 $ 139,522

$ 1,072,496 reported as de lerred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting lrom contributions subsequent to

the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction ol the net pension liability lor the year ending September
30,2023. Other amounts reported as deferrecl outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in pension expense as lollows:

PIan 10190
City

Pl:Ln 30190
Hcalth Dcpt.

$ (s80,34 1) $

(l ,3 72,1s0)
(s96,849)
(664,000)

(r4,st2)
(s3,0e7)
(38,e23)
(24,647)

$ (3,213,340) S ( t3l.l79)

Brownwood F-irefishter's Relief and Retirement Fund Plan Description

The City contributes to the retirement plan for firefighters in the Brownwood Irire Department known as the

Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement Fund (the Fund). f'he Fund is a single employer, contributory,
defined benefit plan.

The benefit provisions of the Fund are authorized by the 'fexas Local Fire Fighters' Retirement Act (TLFFRA).
TLFFRA provides the authority and procedure to amend benefit provisions. T'he plan is administered by the Board
of Trustees olthe Brownwood Firefightcr's Rclief and Retirement Fund. The City does not have access to nor can

it utilize assets within the retirement plan trust. The Fund issues a stand-alone rcport pursuant to GASB Statement
No. 67, which may be obtained by writing the Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement Fund at P. O. Box
1389, Brownwood, Texas 76804. See that report lor all inlormation about the plan fiduciary nct position.

++
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NOTE l2: DEFINED BENEFI'I'PENSION PI-AN (CONT.)

Benefits Provided

Firefighters in the Brownwood Fire Department are covered by the Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement
Fund which provides service retirement, death, disability, and withdrawal benefits. These benefits lully vest after 20
years of credited service. Firefighters may retire at age 50 with 20 years olservice. A vested benefit delerred to age
50 is provided for firefighters who terminate employment belore age 50 with at least 20 years of service. The present
plan effective October 1,2008 provides a monthly normal service retirement benefit, payable in aJoint and Two-
Thirds to Spouse lorm of annuity, equal to 50% of Highest 60-Month Average Salary plus $54.50 per month lor
each year ofservice in excess o120.

A retiring firefighter who is at least age 52 with at least 20 years of service has the option to elect the Retroactive
Deferred Retirement Option Plan (RETRO DROP)which will provide a lump sum benefit and a reduced monthly
benefit. The reduced monthly benefit is based on the se rvice and Highest 60-Month Average Salary as if he had
terminated employment on his selected RETRO DROP benefit calculation date, which is no earlier than the later
ol the date he meets the age 52 and 20 years of service requirements and the date two years prior to the date he
actually retires. Upon retirement, the member will receive, in addition to his monthly retirement benefit, a lump
sum equal to the sum o[ (l) the amount of monthly contributions the member has made to the Fund after the
RETRO DROP benefit calculation date pius (2) the total of the monthly retirement benefits the member would
have received between the RETRO DROP benefit calculation date and the date he retired under the plan. There
are no account balances. The lump sum is calculated at the time ol retirement and distributed as soon as

administratively possible.

There is no provision lor automatic postretirement benefit increases. The Fund has the authority to provide, and
has periodically in the past provided, ad hoc postretirement benefit increases.

Members Covered by the Irund

At the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation, the loliowing numbers of members we re covered by the Fund:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 29

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 0

Active employees 33

Funding Polic),

The contribution provisions of the Fund are authorized by TLFFRA. TLFFRA provides the authority and procedure
to change the amount of contributions determined as a percentage of pay by each firefighter and a percentage of
payroll by the City.

The lunding policy of the Brownwood Firefighter's Relief and Retirement I-'und requires contributions equal to 100/o

of pay by the firefighters, the rate elected by the firefighters according to TLFFRA effective October l, 2021. The
rate had previously been B0l0. The City normally contributes 20o/o of payroll, as it did for 2021 and 2022. The
December 3l , 2021 actuarial valuation included the assumption that the total contribution rate would continue to
be 3004, even though the fund had an inadequate contribution arrangement. The costs of administering the plan
are paid lrom the Fund assets.

Ultimately, the lunding policy also depends Lrpon the total return ol the Fund's assets, which varies lrom year to
year. Investment policy decisions are established and maintained by the board ol trustees. For the year ending
December 31,2021 , the money-weighted rate olreturn on pension plan investments was ll.2lo/o. This measurement
ol the investment perlormance is net of investment-related expenses, reflecting the effect of the timing of the
contributions received and the benefits paid during the year.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD,'I'EXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S'T'O BASIC FINANC IAL STATEME,NTS (CONT.)

September 30,2022

NOTE 12: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PI-A,N (CONT.)

Funding Policy (cont.)

While the contribution requirements are not actuarially determined, state law requires that each change in plan
benefits adopted by the Fund must first be approved by an eligible actuary, certifying that the contribution
commitment by the firefighters and the assumed city contribution rate together provide an adequate contribution
arrangement. Using the entry age actuarial cost method, the plan's normal cost contribution rate is determined as a
percentage of payroll. The excess ol the total contribution rate over the normal cost contribution rate is used to
amortize the plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability (tjAAL). The number of years needed to amortize the plan's
UAAL is actuarially determined using an open, level percentaee of payroll method.

Pension

The City of Brownwood's net pension liability was measured as December 3 l, 2021 , and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 3 l, 202 l.
-Ibtal pcnsion liability
Plan fiduciary nct pctsiti<tn

City's nt:t pcnsion liability ,301

$ 1 1,498,390
s,789,089

$ 5.709

Pl:irr fiduciary nct position as a pcrccntzrsc of thc total pcnsion liability 5o.3o/o

Aclttaial assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using
the lollowing actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.7 5o/o

Salary increases 2.75o/o, plus promotion, step and longevity increases that vary by service

Investment rate of return 7o/o, net of pension plan inve stment expense, including inflation

Discount rate 7o/o

Mortality rates were based on the Pub S-2010 (public safety) below-median income mortality tables for employees
and retiree s (sex distinct), projected generationally using projection scale MP-2019.

The long-term expected rate olreturn on pension plan investments is reviewed for each biennial actuarial valuation
and was determined using a building-block method in which expected future net real rates ol return (expected
returns, net ol pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed lor each major asset class. These
components are combined to produce the iong-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected luture net
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage (currently resulting in4.23o/o) and by adding expected
inflation (2.75o/o).

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability wasTo/o. No projection of cash flows was
used to determine the discount rate because the December 31,2021 actuarial valuation revised to reflect the new
contribution policy showed that expected contributions would pay the normal cost and amortized the unfunded
actuariai liability (UAAL)in 53 years. Because of the 53-year arnortization period of the UAAL, the pension plan's
fiduciary net position is expected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 77o was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments as the discount rate to determine the total pension liability.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

NO'I'ES'I'O BASIC ITINANC IAL S'I'41'EME,NTS (C ONT.)

September 30,2022

NOTE l2: DEFINED BENEF'IT PENSION PI-AN (CONT.)

Net Pension Liability (cont.)

The target allocation and expected arithmetic net real rates olreturn lor each major asset class are summarized in
the following table:

Asset Class Tarset Allocation Lons-T'erm Expected Real Rate of Return
Equity - Large Cap
Domestic

22Yo 5.40o/o

Iiquity - Small/mid Cap
Domestic

l30h s.90%

Equity - International
Deveioped

190h s.90%

Equity - Emergine
Markets

90/o 7 .40o/o

Alternatives - REI'I' 50/o 2.90o/o

Alternatives-Credit
lncome

50/o 1.40o/o

Irixed Income
Domestic Core

lB% 0.90%

Fixed income -

Nontraditional

ao /I /O 1.90%

Cash 2To 0.0%
Total 100%

Weiehted Averase +.230h

Sensitiui\t of the net pension liabiliE to changes in the discount rate. 'lhe loliowing presents the net pension liability ol the City,
calculated using the discount rate of 7o/o, compared to what the City's net pension liability would be il it were
calculatcd using a discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower (6%) or 1-percentage-point higher (B%) than the
current rate:

loA l)ecrease in
Discount Rate (6%) l)iscount Rate (7%)

lolo Increase in Discount
Rate (B%)

City's Net Pension Liabilitv $7,1B 1,770 $5,709,301 $4,490,20 r

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position. The plan fiduciary net position reported above is the same as reported by the Fund.
Detailed information about the plan fiduciary net position is available in the Fund's separately issued audited financial
statements, which are reported ursing the economic resources manage ment locus and the accrual basis of accounting
in conlormity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica. Revenues are recorded
when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing olthe related cash flows.
Investments are reported at fair value, the price that would be recognized to sell an asset in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
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CI'I'Y OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

BASIC

September 30,2022

NOTE l2: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION P[-AN (CONI'.)

Net Pension Liabilit), (cont.)

Changes in the net pension liability:

Amounts as of Scptcmbcr3O,2O21
Changcs ftrr thc ycar:

Scruicc cost

Intc rcst

Diffbrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cxpcricncc
Chan,g<' i n assumptions
Changc in bcncfit pr,rvisions
C on tribu tio ns-cmp loyc r
C on tributio ns-c mp Ioycc
Nct invcstm( nt incomc
Bcncfit paymcnts
Administralivc cxpcnsc

Nct ch:rngcs
Am()unts as of Scptcmbcr30,2022

Diffcrcncc bctwccn projcctcd and actr,ral invcstmcnt carninss on
pcnsion plan invcstmcnts

Dillcrcnccs bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual cxpcricncc
Changcs of assumptklns

Contributions subscqucnt to thc mcasrrrcmcnt datc
Total

Incrcasc (Dccrcasc)
'lot:rl Pr:nsion
Liabiliry (a)

Plan Fiduciary
Nct Positi<>n (b)

Nct Pcnsion
Liabiliry (a)-(b)

$ 10,983,464 $ s,40B,Bs6 $ 5.57 4,608

$ 301 ,27 6 $

763,558
200,860
(t6,232)
I8,991

398,825
170,894
594,372

(7 s3,527)
(30,331)

30t,276
763,558
200,860
(t6,232)

r 8,991
(3eB,B2s)
(r 70,8s4)
(s94,372)

$

(7 s3,527)
30,331

$ 5t4,926 $ 380,233 $ r 34,693
q 11,498,390 $ 5,789,089 $ 5,709,301

Ou

For the year ended September 30, 2022, the City's GASB 68 pension expense of $5 I 0,345. Amounts recognized in
the fiscal year represent changes between the current and prior measurement dates.

Components of Pension Expense for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2021:

Scrvicc cost
Intc rcst
Firc fi shtc r's contribu tions
Pro-jcctcd caminss on pcnsion plan invcstmcnts
Am<lrtization of difl'crcnccs bctwccn projcctcd urnd:rctu:rl caminss r>n pl:rn invcstmcnts
Amortization of changcs of' assumpti<tns
Amortization ol diffi:rcnccs bctwccn cxpcctcd an :rctual cxpcricncc
Changt s ol'bcncfit provisions
Pcnsion plzrn administrativc cxpcnscs

T<rtal pcnsion cxpcnsc

$ 301 ,27 6

763,558
(170,8e4)
(371,125)
(t67 ,147)
r02,224

9,13 1

I8,99 i
30,331

$ s 16,34.s

Delerred Outflows of Resources and f)eferred Inflows olResources to be Recognized in Pension Expense in Future
Years:

Dclcrrcd
Outflows of
Rcsourccs

Dclcrred Inflows
ol- Rcsourccs

S

96,496

3 l 6,389

481,492

185,9 r7

S

+B

S 4t2,885 S 667,409



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
IJrownwood, Texas

TES TO

September 30,2022

NO'IE l2: DEFINED BENEI'IT PENSION PI-AN (CONI'.)

ONT

Defe
(cont.)
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources reiated to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as lollows:

Plan Ycar

Nct of Dclcrrcd

Outflows Minus
Dclcrrcd Inflows

2022

2023

2024

202s

2026
'fhcrcaltcr

Total

S 79

(109,495)

(20,7s7)

( l 38,e2B)

(3 lB,B57)

t7,045
s (s70,913)

Deferced Outflow of Resources to Be Recognised Next fear. -fhe total of the contributions by the City to the Fund contributed
subsequent to the measurement date olthe net pension liability, December 31,2021 through September 30,2022is
a deferred outflow of resources that will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability lor the year ending
September 30,2023. This amount is $316,389.

NOTE i3: COMMITMEI{TS

Brownwood Municipal f)evelopment District (BMDD) has a building improvement incentive program that
provides matching funds of up to $20,000 upon completion olan approved project. Six projects rotaling $ 139,665
were approved and not yet lunded at September 30,2022. During a prior year, BMDD approved a financial
incentive to Hendricks Health System for construction of a medical olfice building in the amount of $350,000
payableoverfiveyears. AtSeptember30,2022,thereis$l00,000remainingtobepaidonthisincentive. Other
BMDD approved financial incentives that were not yet funded at September 30,2022 are as follows:

. AJA Development LLC up to $675,000 for infrastructure
o Commerce Station LP up to $250,000 for expansion
r Trafalgar Homes up to $350,000 lor inlrastructure

In the current year, BMDD approved up to $12,000,000 lunding to the City of Brownwood lor construction of a
multi-purpose event center. At September 30,2022, $8,718,790 remained to be funded.

The City has an agreement with Brown County to share the costs of theJoint Law Enlorcement Center. Under
this agreement the City pays a percentage of the utilities cost and a percentage of the insurance costs.

The City is committed to a number of construction projects at Septembe r 30,2022 including a multipurpose event
center, airport improvements, street and sidewalk improvements and landfill cell construction and improvements.
Total cost of these projects is approximalely fi24,538,000 with remaining costs olapproximately $21,118,000 at
September 30,2022

NO'fE 14: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City ol Brownwood is the primary guarantor for payment ol principal and interest on Revenue Bonds issued
by Brown County Water Improvement District # I with an approved original balance of $20,490,000. At
September 30,2022 the unpaid balance was 97,310,000. Principal payments on the bonds began February 1,2009
and the final payment is due February 1,2028. Payments are made monthly as a debt service charge on the
statement to the City for water purchases. The payments are shared by charges added to the statements of all of
the contracting parties for the purchase ol treated water from Brown County Water Improve ment District # I .
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2022

NOTE 15: RISK MANAGEME,NT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City's general liability, professional liability, and
worker's compensation insurance coverage is provided through the purchase of commercial insurance. The City
retains risk on only a small deductible amount, except on non-financed vehicles on which no collision insurance is

carried. There were no significant reductions in coverage in the past fiscal year and there were no settlements
exceeding insurance coverage in any ol the past three fiscal years. The City employee health care is provided by
commercial insurance with no risk retained by the City. The management of the City has not been notified and is

not aware of any significant claims against the City not covered by insurance.

NOTE 16: ELECTED OFFICIALS

NOTE 17: APPOINTE,D OFFICIALS AND FIDELITY BONDS

Stephen Haynes
Walker Willey
H.D..|ones
Draco Miller
Melody Nowowiejski
Ed McMillian

Emily Crawlord
William P. Chesser
Christi Wynn
Lee Haney

Mayor
Councilman
Councilman
Councilman
Councilman
Councilman

City Manager
City Attorney
City Secretary
Municipal CourtJudge

City employees are covered by a blanke t fidelity bond in the amount of $ 100,000

NOTE 18: INSURANCE COVERAGE - BUILDINGS AND CONTE,NTS

A summary of the buildings and contents insurance coverage follows:

Insurer: Texas Municipal League
Expiration date: October I through September 30

Coverage: Buildings $ 69,606,586
Contents 7,5+2,580

Risk covered: Fire, lightning, extended coverage including
Replacement cost endorsement.
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NOTE 19

CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTI,S TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATE,MENTS (CONT.)

September 30,2022

RESTATE,MENT OF NET POSITION/FUND BAIANCE

In the prior year, grant funds were recorded in grant and contribution revenue rather than unearned funds grants
in error. The correction of this error resulted in a restatement of beginning net position on the government-wide
statements and in beginning lund balance on the governmental funds statements. The City previously recorded
capital leases for vehicles. The implementation of GASB 87 Ixases resulted in a restatement of net position for a
cumulative change in accounting principle. The e{Iect of these two items on net position/fund balance is as lollows:

Nct Position

Govcrnmcntill
Activitics

Ncr Position

Busincss-typc

Activitics

Fund Balanccs

Gcncral
Fund

Nct Position

Utility
Fund

Nct Position

Sanitation
Fund

Bcginning nct position/lund balancc

Corrccti<ln of crror
Adoption of CASB 87 Lcascs

Bcginning nct positkrn/lund balancc as

rcstatcd

S 27,608,323 S

(2,286,44.)

3t9,193

l+,08+,20r S

48,1 6 I

tt,832,32+ S

(2,286,445)

13,939,198

35,933

s (2,094,786)

t2 228

s 25,64t,671 S t+,132,366 S 9,545,879 S 13,975,131 S (2,082,558)

NOTtr 20: SUBSEQUENT' EVENTS

Subsequent to year end, the City issued City of Brownwood, Texas Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2022in the amount of $9,015,000 for the purpose of landfill cell construction.
-Ihe bonds are payabie over 10 years and are payable lrom ad valorem taxes.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

f.EXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTE,M PLAN IOI9O CITY
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND REI-ATED RATIOS

Last Eight Plan Years

20r+ 20l s 2016

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY:
Scrvicc cost

Intcrcst (on total pcnsion liability)
Changcs in bcncfit tcrms includins

subst-an tiall y au t() matic sratus

Diflcrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual
cxpcricncc

Changc in assumpLions

Bcncfil paymcnts, including rclunds of
cmploycc contributions
Nct Changc in Total Pcnsion Liability

Tr>tal Pcnsion Liability - Bcginning
T<rtal Pcnsion Liability - Ending (a)

PI-AN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION:
Contribulions - cmploycr
Contributions - cmploycc
Nct invcstmcnt inc<lmc

Bcncfit paymcnl.s, including rclunds of
cmploycc conlributions

Administrativc cxpcnsc
Othcr

Nct Chanec in Plan Fiduciary Nct Position
Plan Fiduciary Ncl Position - Bceinning
Plan Fiduciary Nct Position - Ending (br)

NET PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING (a) - (b)

PI-AN FIDUCIARY NETPOSITION AS A PERCE,N-IAGE
OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

NE'I'PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCENTAGE OF
COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROLL

NOTES TO SCHEDULE:
A lull tcn ycar schcdulc i"ill b" p.....rtcd as it bccomcs availablc

$ |,27 | ,262 $

2,978,273
1,371,i51 $

3,O72,O0r
1,469,768
3,O82,792

(993,70e) (B r l,345)
155,985

(282,788)

(l,945,700) (l,9B7,BBe) (2,115,766)
$ 1,310,126

42,883,969
$ 1,799,903 $ 2,15+,006

45,993,99844.19 +,09s
$ 44, r 94,095 $ 45,993,998 $ 48. I +8,00+

$ | ,27 6,6t2 $

601,366
2,050,2t3

r,315,768 $

625,28r
55,77+

I,314,906
656,984

2,5s2,844

( l ,94s,700)
(2 i,40s)

0.760)

( l ,98 7,889)
(33,971)

(1,67e)

(2,r 15,7 66)
(2B,B2e)
(l,s53)

$ 1,9s9,326
3s,838,s02 ,B2B 37 77 r It2

$ (26,716) $ 2,378,s86
37 "797

$ 37 797 B2B $ 40,149,698

$ 6,396,26 7 $ 8,222,886 $ 7,998,3 06

85.s3%

8,s90,941 $

82.l2o/o 83.39o/o

$ 8,932,582 $ 9,38s,489

7 4.45o/o 92.O5o/" 85.22o/"

_$__:TJJJI2_
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20t7 2018 2019 2020 2021

$ I,s08,s07 $

3,22+,688
1,s20,893 $

3,365,563
1,566,926 $

3,516,7 7 6

I ,6s6,381 $

3,662,099
r,594,738
3,8 I l,9Bs

(232,66r) (79,4O2) (378, l I 7)

23,428
(258,868) 706, I 60

(2,258, r 96) (2,58l,l B7) (2.s9 B,5BO) (2,643,040) (2,973,462)
fi 2,242,338 fi

48,148,004
2,225,867 $

50,390,342
2,t30,433 $

s2,6 16.209
2,4t6,572 $

54,7 46,642
3,r39,42r

57,163,214
$ 50,390 ,342 $ 52,6 16,209 $ s4,746,642 $ 57,163,214 $ 60,302,635

$ 1,333,369 $

677,329
5,56+,415

1,322,2t7 fi
6Bs,0B 7

(1,360,949)

1,324,616 $

7 05,+57
6,7 t9,995

(2,598,s80)
(37,s77)

(l,141)

1,+29,684 $

7 48,526
3 ,7 61 ,947

(2,643,0+0)
(2+,3s5)

(s5l )

1,330,331
71t,694

6,887,9 l B

(2,973,462)
(3 r,BB3)

2lB

(2,258,196)
(2B,B3B)

(r,462)

(2,sB l, r B7)
(26,3o4)

(r,37 4)

$ s,286,617 $ ( i ,e62,s r 0) $

45,436,31s
6 ,1 t2,37 0 $

+3,473,8O5
3,271,B I I $

+9,s86,t75
5,924,8l6

52,8s7,98640.1+9 ,698
$ 45,436,31s $ 43.473 ,BOs $ 49,586,175 $ 52,8s7,986 $ sB,7B2,BO2

fi +,954,027 ff 9,t42,404 $ 5,160,467 $ 4,305,228 $ i,5 19,833

$

9O.l7o/o

I,67 6,122 $

5r.200/0

B2.62ok 90.57o/o 92.47Yo 97.4Boh

9,786,957$i0,083,176$10,693,227$10,055,095

93.41o/o 5l.l 80/. 40.260h | 5.12%"

53



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RE,TIREMENT SYSTEM PI-AN 30 I9O HEALTH DEPARTMENT
SCHEDUI,E OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND REI-ATED RATIOS

Last Eight Plan Years

20t+ 20 l5 2016

TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY:
Service cost

Interest (on total pension liability)
Changes in benefit terms including

substan tially aut omatic stat us

Difference between expected and actual
experience

Change in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee cont ribut ions
Total Pension Liability - Beginning
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a)

PI-AN FIDUCIARY NET POSI'|ION:
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Beneht payments, including refunds of

employee cont ribut ions
Administrative expense
Other
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b)

NET PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING (a) - (b)

PI-AN FIDUCIARY NET POSITIONAS A PERCE,N'|AGE,
OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY

COVE,RE,D F],MPLOYEE PAYROI,I,

NET PE,NSION LIABILITY AS A PE,RCENTAGE OF
COVERED EMPLOYEE, PAYROI,L

NOTES TO SCHEDULE:
A full ten year schedule will be presented as it becomes available

$ 1,229,291 $ 1,316,311 $ t,3+6,902

$

$ 59,025 $

BO,I 1B

62,+60 $

84,570
65,562
88,546

(4B,s2s)

(7+,se2)

8,050

(6s,871)

16,940
27,809

(r04,7s9)

$ 81,322 $

1,1+7 ,969

87,020 $

|,229,291
30,s91

1,3 16,3 ll

31,+83 $

27,582
62,35 I

36,+07 $

29,+62
i,689

+0,122
30,035
7 +,773

(65,871)
(6s l)

(s4)

$ 54,840
1,090,007

(104,7se)
(1,029)

(s0)

(7+,592)
(B4s)

(46)

$ $(3B,2Bo)

1,144,847
69,+47

1,106,s67

$ 1, 14+.8+7 $ 1,106,567 $ 1,176,014

fi 84,4+4 $ 209,744 $ 170,BBB

93.130h 84.O7o/o 87.3lo/"

$ 394,031 $ 420,889 $ 429,068

21.43o/" 49.83o/o 39.83%o

5+



2017 20lB 20 l9 2020 202r

$ 68,378 $

90,878

(48,929)

(69.49s)

66,235 $

92,725
66,7 l+ $

100,673

73,369 $

llo,+37
Bl,9l5

l17,B29

+6,48+

(94,293)

26,39+
29,031

(B r,5e2)

29,+57 (78,033)

( l 34.,66 1)(B 1,379)

$ +0,832 $

t,3+6,902
I I l,15l $

r,387,734
t41,220 $

t.49B.BB5
l3l,BB4 $

1,640,105
( I 2,eso)

1,77l,gBg
$l 387 734 $ l,49B,BB5 $ 1,640,105 ,989 $ I,759,039$ 1.77 I

$ +6,376 $

31,325
t62,t22

46,373 $

30,+23
(40,102)

(s+,2s3)
(77e)

(40)

43,905 $

3r,624
197,95 t

(B 1,s92)

(r,t2+)
(34)

s2,+98 $

34,538
I tt,673

63,5 15

38,561
207,064

(r 34,661)
(e62)

o

(69,49s)
(B4s)

(43)

(B l,37e)
(726)

(28)

$ 169,4+0 $

I,176,014
(58,418) $ i90,730 $

1,287 ,036

l16,s76 $ t73,525
1,59+,3423+5 45+ +77 766

fi 1,345,4s+ $ 1.287 ,036$1,477,766$r,594,3+2$r,767,867

96.95o/o 85.87%o 90.10% 89.970k 100.5OYo

$ 42,280 $ 2tr,B+9 $ 162,339 $ t77,6+7 $ (B,B2B)

fi ++7,500 $ 434,613 $ ++6,5+7 $ 493,400 $ 550,872

9.45o/o +8.7 +o/o 36.35o/o 36.0O%o (1.60%)
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, -['exas

BROWNWOO D FIRI'I.-IGHTER'S RE I,IEF AND RE,TIRE,ME NT FUNI)
SCHE,DULE OIT CHANGES IN NE,T PENSION LIABILITY AND REI,,ATED RAT'IOS

Last Eight Plan Years

201+ 2015 2016

TO'IAL PtrNSION LIABII,ITY:
Scrvicc cost

Intcrcst (on total pcnsion liability)
Changcs in bcncfit tcrms
Diffcrcncc bctwccn cxpcctcd and actual

cxpc ric ncc

Ch:rngc of zrssumptions

Bcncfit paymcnLs, including rclunds of
cmploycc contributirins
Nct Changc in Total Pcnsir>n Lizibility

Tourl Pcnsion Liability - Bcginning
To&rl Pcnsion Liability - trnding (a)

PI-AN FIDUCIARY NE"I' POSITION:
Contributions - cmploycr
Contributions - cmploycc
Nct invcstmcnL incomc
Bcncfit paymcnls, includine rclunds of

cmploycc contributions
Administr:rtivc cxpcnsc
Othcr

Nct Chzrngc in Plan Fiduciary Nct Position
Plan Fiduciary Nct Position - Bcginnine
Plan Fiduciary Nct P<isition - Ending (b)

NETPENSION LIAtsILI'IY - ENDING (") - (b)

PI-AN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION AS A PERCENIAGE
OF TOTAL PENSION I,IABII,ITY

COVtrRE,D E,N4 PLOYEE PAYROLL

$ 2\ r ,640 $

56]1,8+4

219,098 $

586,487
229,505
6l I,749

(4O9,456)

(+2,s+2)
87 ,5+l

(486,32s) (41B,4l r )

$ 287 ,ts9 $

7 ,522,7 7 4
432,r73 $ 431 ,7 98

8,242,106809 933

$ 7,809,933 $ 8,2+2,106 $ 8,673,904
7

$ 323,97 5 $

I29,58I
62,582

(486,3 2s)
(12,414)

340,O92 $

136,036
(Bs,706)

(4rB,4l l)
(l8,346)

3 5 5,382
142,143
| 56,321

(4 09,456)
(2+,288)

$ 17,399 $ (46,3 35) $

3,443,809

,r0 1nt
3,397 ,47 4+26 4103

$ 3,443,809 $ 3,397 ,474 $ 3,6 17,576

$ 4,366,124 $ 4,8+4,632 $ 5,056,328

44. | 0o/o 41.20t/o 4I .7 0o/o

$ 1,6 19,763 $ 1,700,4s0 $ |,776,788

NET PENSION LIABILITY AS A PERCE,NTAGE OF
COVERED EMPLOYEE PAYROI,I, 269.600/" 284.90"k 2B4.6Ooht

NOTES TO SCFIEDULE:
Until alull lO-ycartrcndiscompilcd,onlyavailablcinlormationisshr>wn. ThcmcasurcmcntdatcisDcccmbcr3l,nincmonths

prior to thc fiscal ycar cnd.
Total pcnsion Iiability 1or2014,2016,2018 and 2020 wcrc dctcrmincd lrom thc bcginingo{'thc ycartotal pcnsion Iiability, usingthc
roll lorwzrrd proccdurc allowcd by GASB 68.

$3.2 million of'thc $3.9 million changc of'assumptions in 2019 is thc rcsult of using thc blcndcd discount ratc of 4.B6Vo as

prcscribcd by GASB rathcr than thc 7o/o l<tns-tcrm cxpcctcd ratc of rcturn.
Covcrcd cmploycc payroll is contribudons by {ircfightcn; dividcd by thcircontribulion ratio.
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20t7 201B 2019 2020 2021

$ 237,308 $

640,267

70,132
146,910

(517,907)

256,6s 1 $

667,406

(603.3 3 7)

264,992 $

693,266
480,945 $

676,O34
30t,276
763,s58

r 8,991

200,860
(t6,232)

( 168,400)
3,8s6,465 (3,362,358)

(+80,7 48)(s48,066) It3J ,527)
$ 576,710 $ 320,720

9,2sO,614
$ 4,098,257 $ (2,686,t27) $

13,669,591
5r+,926

10,983,4649.571 ,334673 904
$ 9,2s0,614 $ 9,s71,334 $ 13.66 9,591 $ 10,983,464 $ 11,498,390

$ 369,5s9 $

I +7 ,Bt3
552,099

(s 17,907)
( l 1 ,050)

386,967 $

t52,982
(226,6ts)

(603,33 7)

(34,036)

423,5 r 5 $

161,339
796,+28

(s48,066)
( 1 2,004)

4l 3,686 $

164,262
663,6s3

(480,7 4B)

(7,260)

398,B2s
170,894
594,372

(7 s3,s27)
(30,33 r )

$ 540,5t4
3,617,576

$ (324,03s) $ B2t,2r2 $

3,834,051
7 53,593 $

+,655,263
38O,233

5,408,8564.i58 ,090
$ 4, 158,090 $ 3,834,0s1 $ +,65s,263 $ 5,408,8s6 $ s,789,089

$ s,092,s24 $ 5,737,283 $ 9,0r4,328 $ 5,s74,608 $ s,709,301

44.90ol' 40.l}o/o

t ,9 t2,27 s $

3+.10o/o 49.2Oo/" 50.300A

$ 1,847,663 $ 2,016,738 $ 2,053,27s $ t,994,125

27 5.600/o 300.00% ++7 .OOo/o 27 1.50%o 286.3Oo/"
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RE.TIRE,MENT SYSTEM PI-AN I O I9O CITY
SCHE,DULE, OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Eight Fiscal Years

2015 2016 20r7

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution

Contributions in rclation lo the acruarially
dctermincd contribution

Contribution dcfi cicncy (cxccss)

Covcrcd cmploycc payroll

Contribudons as a pcrccntagc of covcrcd
cmplt>yee payroll

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF PENSION COI{TRIBUTIONS:

Valuation Datc:
Notcs

Mcthods and Assumptions lJscd to Dctcrminc ContribuLion
Ratcs:

Actuarial Cost Mcthod
Amortizalion Mcthod
Rcmaining Amortization Pc riod
Assct Valuation Mcthod
Inflation
Salary Incrcascs
Invcstmcnt Ratc of Rcturn
Rctircmcnt Agc

Mortality

Othcr inlormation
Notcs

$ 1,299,125 $ 1,369,43 l $ t,337,74+

r ,299,125 I ,369,43 I .).) I 74+

$ $ $

$ 8,798,850 $ 9,647,016 fi 9,670,777

r +.7 60k | 4.2ooht t3.B30h

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution ratcs arc calculatcd as of Dcccmbcr
31 and bccomc cffi:ctivc in.fanuary thirlccn months latcr.

Entry Agc Normal
Lcvcl Pcrccntagc of Payroll, Closcd
24 ycarc
l0 ycar smoothe d markct; l2olo solt corridor
2.50%o

3.5Yo to I1.500/o including inflation
6.7 5o/o

Expcricncc-bascd tablc of ratcs that arc spccific t() thc City's plan ol
bcncfits. Last updatcd lor thc 20 1 9 valuadon purcuant to an

cxpcricncc sLudy ofthc pcriod 2014-2018.

Post-rctircmcnt: 2019 Municipal Rcdrccs of Tcxas Mortality Tablcs.
Thc rz.tcs are projcctcd on a fully gcncrational basis with scalc UMP.
Prc-rctircmcnt PUB(10) mortality tablcs, with thc Public Salcty tablc
used ft)r malcs and thc Gcncral Employcc tablc uscd lor fcmalcs. Thc
ratcs arc projccfd on a lully gcncralional basis with scalc UMP.

Thcrc wcrc no bcncfit changcs during thc ycar
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201B 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ r,307,90s $ t,33t,684 $ 1,359,045 $ 1,341,Os2 $ 1,36s,299

1,307,905 1,33 t,684 l,359,045 t,341,O52 I,365,299

$ $ $ $ $

$ 9,636,494 $ rO,O73,473 $ 10,207,847 $ tO,r72,r40 $ 10,414, lBr

l3.57o/o 13.22o/o | 3 .3 lo/o l3.lBoA 13.1 lo/o
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREME,NT SYSTEM PT-A.N 30 I9O HE,ALTH DEPARTMENT
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Eight Fiscal Years

20 l5 2016

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution

2017

$ 35,246 $ 40,367 fi ++,9r2

Contributions in rclation to thc actuarially
dctcrmincd contribudon

Contribution dcfi cicncy (cxccss)

Covcrcd cmpl<>ycc payroll

Contribud<lns as a pcrccntagc <tfcovcrcd
cmploycc payroll

NOTES TO SCHE,DULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS:

Valuation Datc
Notcs

Mcthods and Assumptions lJscd to Dctcrminc Contribution
Ratcs:

Actuarial Cost Mcthod
Amortization Mcthod
Rcmaining Amo rLization Pcriod
Assct Valuation Mcthod
Infladon
Salary Incrcascs
Invcstmcnt Ratc of Rcturn
Rctircmcnt Agc

Morralitv

Othcr inlormalion
Nolr:s

35,246 40,367 +4 930

$ $ $ (18)

$ 415,734 $ 440,225 ff 443,+82

B.49o/o 9.17o/o 1 0.1 3%

Actuarially dctcrmincd contribution raLcs arc calculatcd as of Dcccmbcr
3l and bccomc cffcctivc in.January thirtccn months latcr.

Entry Agc Normal
Lcvcl Pcrccnlagc ol Payroll, Closcd
22 ycars
l0 ycar smoothcd markct; l2olo solt corridor
2.5oo/o

3.5o/o Lo I I .50% including inflation
6.7 50k

Expcricncc-bascd tablc of ratcs that arc spccific to thc City's plan of
bcncfiLs. Last updatcd lor thc 2019 valuation punuant to an
cxpcricncc sludy olthc pcriod 2014-2018.

Post-rctircmcnt: 2019 Municipal Rctirccs of Tcxas Morrality Tablcs.
Thc ralcs arc pr<rjcctcd on a lully gcncrational basis with scalc tlMP.
Prc-rclircmcnl PUB(10) mortality tablcs, with thc Public Safety tablc
uscd lor malcs and thc Gcncral Employcc tablc uscd lor lcmalcs. Thc
ratcs arc pnrjcctcd on a lully gcncrational basis with scalc UMP.

Thcrc wcrc no bcncfit changcs during thc ycar
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20lB 2019 2020 2021 2022

$ 46,374 $ 44,396 $ 48,6 15 $ s3,36s $ 93,270

46 374 44 396 48,6 l5 53,36s 93,270

$ $ $ $ $

$ 437,705 $ 438,72s $ 463,767 $ 473,289 $ 78 1,330

1O.59o/o lO.L2o/o lO.49o/o 11 .2$o/o | |.94o/o
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TE,XAS
Brownwood, Texas

BROWNWOOD FIREFIGHTER'S RELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Eight Fiscal Years

20 15 20 16 2017

Rcquircd contributions

Contributions in rclation t<> thc actuarially
dctcrmincd contributi<>n

Conribution dcfi cicncy (cxccss)

Covcrcd cmploycc payroll

Contributions as a pcrccntagc ofcovcrcd
cmploycc payroll

NOTES TO SCFIEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBI]TIONS

Valuation Datc
Notcs

Mcthods and Assumptions Uscd to Dctcrminc Contribution
Ralcs:

Actuarial Cost Mcthod
Amortization Mcthod
Rcmaining Amortization Pcriod

Inllation
Salary Incrcascs

Invcstmcnt Ratc of Rcturn
Rctircmcnt Agc

Mortality

Othcr inlormation:
Nolcs

c 323,975 S 340,092 S

323,975 3+0,092

355,382

3ss,3B2

S S S

S 1,619,763 S

20.004h

1,700,450 S

20.00%

r,776,788

20.00s/o

Contribution rcquircmcnts arc not actuarially dctcrmincd. Statc law rcquircs
that cach chansc in plan bcncfits adoptcd by thc Fund must first bc approvcd by

an cligiblc actuary, ccrlilying that thc contribution commitmcnt by thc
fircfightcrs and thc assumcd city contribution ratc togclhcr providc an adcquatc
contribution arrangcmcnt

Entry Agc

Actuarially dctcrmincd using an opcn, lcvcl pcrccntasc ofpayroll
53 ycars

2.7 5o/o

2.75% plus promotion, stcp and longcvity incrcascs that vary

by scrvicc

7.0o/o, nct of pcnsion plan invcstmcnt cxpcnscj including inflation
Agc 50 with 20 ycars ofscrvicc

Pub S-2010 (public salcty) bclow-mcdian incomc mortality tablcs lor cmployccs
and rctirccs (scx distinct), projcctcd gcncrationally using projcction scalc MP-
201 9

Thcrc wcrc no bcncfit changcs dr.rring thc ycar
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S 369,5s9 S 386,967 S +23,5t5 S

369,s59 386,967

403,601 S 430,r92

423,5r5 403,601 430,r92

S S S a
S

S 1,847,663 S

20.00o/o

t,9t2,27 5 S

20.2+o/.

2,0 16,738 S

2I.0oo/o

2,018,006 S

20.00%

2,t50,962

20.)jo/o
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDUI,E
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Original
Budget

Final
Budgct

Actual

Budectary Basis

(Scc Notc A)

Variancc with
Final Budgct

Positivc

(Ncgativc)

RESOURCES (TNFLOWS):

Ad valorcm taxcs

Salcs tax

Othcr taxcs

Fincs

Liccnsc and lccs

Chargcs [or scrviccs

Intcrgovcrnmcntal
Misccllancous

Total Chargcs to Appropriations (Outflows)

EXCESS CHARGES TO APPROPRIATIONS

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

6,182,836 S

6,198, l48
3,535,200

2 I 5,000

61,000

303,500

1,349,648

66,647

6,182,836 S

6, I 98,148

3,535,200

215,000

61,000

303,500

1,349,648

66,6+7

6,244,571 S

6,769,227

3,666,446

3t7,92r
l4 l,2B I

336,503

I,758,930

204,033

S 6 1,735

571,079

13t,246
to2,92l
80,281

33,003

409,282

137,386

Total Rcsourccs (Inflows)

CHARGES TO APPROPRTATIONS (OUTFLOWS):

City Council
Administration

City Sccrctary
Financc/Accounting
Municipal Court
Policc

Dispatch

Firc
Planning and dcvclopmcnt
Strcct
Hcalth
Community scrviccs

Intcrgovcrnmcntal
Uriliry billine
Community lacilitics
Opcrations support
Purchasing/warchousc
Parks and rccrcati<ln

Flcct scrviccs

City Attorncy
Community dcvclopmcnt
Public works/cneinccring
Emcrgcncy managcment
Human Rcsourccs

Fire Marshal
Gcneral fund contingcncy
Inlormation tcchnology
Transportation muscum

Othcr

s 17 911 979 S 17,91 1,979 S t9,438,912 S 1,526,933

S 57,+28 S

317,610

l 12,958

386,608

272,960
5,223,547

3,850, I 30

972,28r
1,929,838

294,831

5 13,048

269,860

372,242
685,648

I 65,036

185,80 1

1,957,16 I

73+,986

205,299

71,+28 S

329,5r2
112,958

386,608

272,960
5,284,176

3,850, 1 30

972,281
r,999,425

307,777

5 13,048

269,860

372,242

685,648

165,036

I85,BO I

1,980,546

7+7,296

205,299

7 4,01a s
263,968

I 0 i,396
342,869

263,99 I

3,874,030

I,02 1,5 15

3,952,239

1,507,8J7

2,698, I 29

287,004
5 19,393

268,65+

429,410

736,932

r48,992
169,137

1,83 1,566

772,802

1.85,7 t7
145,550

3 16,49 I

28,502

24+,t53
6,52r

97,826

920,506

213,991

662,710

(2,587)

65,544

I1,562
43,739

8,969

l,410,146
(1,02 r,5 15)

(142,109)

(535,576)

(6e8,704)

20,773

(6,345)

1,206

(5 7,168)

(5 1,284)

16,04+

16,664

l4B,9B0

(25,506)

19,582

(145,550)

172,907

(5,5 l7)

23,688

3,437

221,719
(l 10,168)

(7,868)

(662,770)

489,398

22,98a
267,84r

9,962

3 i9,545

B 10,338

].92,657

489,398

22,985

267,841

9,962

3 19,54a

B 10,33B

206,r23

s 20,619,998 S 20,838,223 S 22,125,930 S (1,287,707)

S (2,7oB,ore) s

9,545,879

(2,s26,244) S

9,545,879

(2,687,01B) S

9,545,879

s 6,837,860 S 6,619,635 S 6,858,861 S

6+

239,226



CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S TO BUDGE,TARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

NOTE A: EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN BUDGETARY INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS AND
GAAP REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Sourccs/infl ows ol Rcsourccs:

Actual amounts (budgctary basis) availablc lor appropriation lrom thc budgctary comparison schcdulc.

Thc City budgcts for salcs tax bascd on thc amount collcctcd rathcr than on thc modificd accrual basis.

Thc City docs not budget for ccrtain grant and contribution rcvcnucs

'I'otal rcvcnucs as rcportcd on thc statcmcnt ofrcvcnucs, cxpcnditurcs and changcs in lund balanccs

govcrnmcntal lund.

l]scs./outfl ows of Rcsourccs:

Actual amount (budgctary basis) charecs to appropriations lrom thc budgctary comparison schcdulc

Thc City budgcts lor salarics on thc cash basis rathcr than on thc modificd accrual basis

Thc City budgcts lor compcnsatcd abscnccs on thc cash basis rathcr than thc modificd accrual basis.

Thc City budgcts lor pcnsion cxpcnsc on thc cash basis rathcr than thc modificd accrual basis.

Thc City budgcts lor capital outlay lor contributcd assets on thc cash basis rathcr than lhc modificd accrual basis.

The City budgcts lor capital outlay lor lcascd asscts on thc cash basis rathcr than thc modificd accrual basis.

Total cxpcnditurcs as rcportcd on thc statcmcnt ofrcvcnucs, cxpcnditurcs and changcs in fund balanccs
govcrnmcntal lund.

S 19,438,912

45,013

3,380,246

s 22,864,171

S 22,12i,930

(2i,157)

B5,653

969,822

2,3 t8,105

r,137,6rB

s 27 ,2r t,97 1
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

OTHE,R GOVE,RNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BAI-A,NCE SHEETS

September 30,2022

Total Dcbt
Scrvicc Funds

T<rral Capiral
Proiccts Funds

Tbtal Spccial
Rcvcnuc Funds

Tfrral Othcr
Govcmmcntal

Funds
ASSETS

ASSETS:
Poolcd ca-sh and cash cquivalcnts
Non poolcd cash and cash cquivalcnls
Rcccivablcs, nct
Rcstrictcd asscLs

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND
FUND BAI.ANCES

LIABILITIES:
Accounls payablc
Accrucd payroll
Compcnsatcd abscnccs
Intcmal balanccs

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unavailablc rcvcnuc
Amounls rclatcd [o lcascs

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BAI-ANCES:
Rcstrictcd ftrr:

Dcbt scrvicc
Construction
Fabis Park
Tburism promotion

Assigncd to:
Hcalth and nu[rition programs

(Jnassigncd

TOTAL FUND BAI-ANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BAI-ANCES

$ $ $ $t83,t+7
25

367,O53
358,6 10

183,r47
25

42s,53758,484
113 o66 r52,OB7 623 763

$ 171,550 $ ls2,087 $ 908,835 fi |,232,+72

$ $ 14,7s0 $ 30,225 $

l6,rB0
32,869

++,97 5

16,180
32,869
s5,33055,330

$ 55,330 $ 14,750 $ 79,27+ $ 149,354

$ 58,484 $ $

9,1 30
5a,+B+

9,130
$

$ s8,484 $ $ 9,1 30 $ 67.614

$ 57,736 $ $ $ 57,736
137,337
39,171

350,398

32,3rO
398,552

137,337
39,1 7 1

350,398

32,3rO
398,552

$ r7r,550 $ 152,087 _$____999,8$_ fi \,232,472
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMEI\TS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES I]\ FUND BAI-ANCES

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Tkrtal Dcbt
Scrvicc Funds

Tirurl Capital
Projccts Funds

T<rtal Spccial
Rcvcnuc Funds

Tirtal Othcr
Govc rnmc ntal

l'unds

REVENUES:
Ad valorcm krxcs
Othcr taxes

Grants and contributions
Othcr rcvcnuc
In tc rcst

Tirtal Rcvcnucs

EXPIINDI'IT]RES:
Dcbt scrvicc:

Principal
In tc rcst
Bond lccs

Bond issuancc costs

Capital outlay
Spccial rcvcnuc lund

Total Expcnditurcs

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Trzrnslcrs in
Rclunding bond procccds
Paymcnt to bond rclunding cscrr)w allcnt

Tkrtal Othcr Financing Sourccs

EXCESS OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

FTJND BAI-ANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR

F'IJND BAI-ANCE - END OFYEAR

$ 1,162,256 $ $ $

+27,898
1,303,7 56

420,861
291

t,162,2s6
+27,898

I,303,7s6
+20,861

6r8327

$ 1,162,583 $ st 152.806 $ 3,3 15,389

$ 1,079,8 l s $

302,8l3
806

56,+87

1,079,8 l5
302,8 t 3

806
56,487
t +,7 50

I,970,950

$ $

t+,7 50
1,970,950

$ 1,439,92 I $ t+,750$1,970,950$3,+25,62r

$ (277,338) $ (14.750) $ l8t,Bs6 $ (t 10,232)

$ 59,556 $

6,830,000
(6,630,000)

$ $ 59,556
6,830,000

(6,63o,000)

$ 259,5s6 $ $ $ 259,556

$ (t7,782) $

75,5 l B

(1+,750) $

r52,OB7

l81,Bs6

638,5 75

$ 149,324

866 180

$ s7,736 $ 137,337 $ 820,43i $ 1,0 15,s04
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Krischke CPA. PC
20I C]ENTER.\VENUE
P. O. BOX 1645

BROWNI,VOOD, TEXAS 76804
325-646-6s76
325-646-3476 F.L\

D. A. 66Tonytt Krischke, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIT\L REPORTING AND ON
COIUPLIANCE, AND OTHE,R NIATTERS BASE,D ON T\N AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATE,N,IENTS

PtrRFO RNItrD I N AC C ORD ANC E \'\IITH C; O VE RJ{M Ei\-f A UD I TIr\f G S'|, rYD4BD;

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Brownwood, Texas

I have audited, in accordance r,vith the auditing standalds generally accepted in the United States olAmerica and the standarcls

applicable to financial audits contained in Gotrc'rnnunt Atrliting Standorls issr-red by the Comptroller Genelal of the United States,

the firrancial stateme nts olthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, the agglegate discretely presented comPonent

unit, each maior fund, ar-rd the aggregate remaining fund inlormation of City of Brolvnrvood, Texas, as ol and lor the year

ended September 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, r'vhich collectively comprise City of Brolvnwood,
Texas' basic financial statements, ancl have issued my report thereott dated April 26,2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and perlorming my audit of the finar-rcial statements, I considerecl Citv of Bror'vnu'ood, Texas' internal control over

financial reporting (intelnal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are applopriate in the circttmstances lor the

pllrpose of expressing my opinions on the financial statements, but not lor the pur"pose of'explessing an opinion on the

effectiveness of Ciw ol Bror.vnwood, Texas' internal control. Accordingly, I do r-rot express an opinion on the eflectiveness of
City ol Brolvnwood, Texas' internal control.

A deft:ietu2 in intemal cozDul exists when the design or operation ola control cloes not allolv management or employees, in the

normal cout'se ol perlorming their assigned fnnctions, to prevellt, or detect and colrect, misstatements on a timelv basis. A
ntaterial. uteakne.ss is a deficiency, or a combination ol deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A sigtJicant deJiciarcy is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, ir-i intelnal control that is less severe than a material

r,r'eakness, yet important enough to mer-it attention by those charged vvith governance.

NIy consideration ol intelnal control lvas for the limited pul'pose described in the first paragraph ol this section and r,va.s not

clesigned to identily all deficiencies in internal control that might be material lveaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these

limitatior.rs, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal coutrol that I consider to be material weaknesses.

Holvever, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Cornpliance and Other Matters

As patt olobtaining reasonable assllrance about r,vhether City of Brolvnr,vood, T'exas' financial statements are free lrom material
misstatement, I pelformecl tests olits compliar-rce lvith certain provisions of larvs, regulations, contracts, and grant agt'eements,

noncompliance r,vith which cor-rld have a direct and material eflect on the financial statements. Holvever, providing an opinion
on compliance r,r,ith those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accot'dingly, I do not express sttch au opinion. The
results olmy tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other- matters that are required to be reported turder Golentnlc.nt

Auditittg Sktndarck.

Purpose of this Report
'Ihe purpose of this lepor-t is solely to describe the scope of'my testing of internal control and compliance and the results olthat
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the e{Iectiver-ress ol the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an

integlal part o{'an audit performed in accordance wirh Gouenntwtt Auditittg Standords in considering the entity's internal contlol
and compliance. Accor:dingly, this communication is not suitable for any other pur-pose.

huf"/W. c,f\, P,--
I{rischke CPA, PC
April26, 2023
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INDE,PENDE,NT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CON,IPLIANCE FOR EACH N,IAJOR PROGRAN4
INTERNT\L (iONTR THF],

The Honorable Mayor and City Council
City ol Brownwood, Texas

Report on Cornpliance for Each Major Federal Prograrn

Opinion on Each Major Federal Prograrn

I irave audited Citv of Bror,r,nr,vood, Texas' compliance r'vith the types of compliance requirements iclentified as subject to audit

inthe O'l4B ConQli.am:e Sultplenunt that could irave a dilect and matelial eftbct ou each olCitv olBt'ottntvood, Texas'major'
lede ral programs lor the year ended Seittember' 30,2022. Citv of Brovvn,,.r'oocl, Texas major lederal programs are identified in

the summarv of auclitor's lesnlts section of the accompanving schedule of finclings and cluestior-red costs.

In rr-ry oirinion, City of Bro'uvnrvood, Texas, complied, in all material respects, r'vitir ti-re types oI'compliance reqttit-ements rele rrecl

to above tl.rat could have a direct and material eflect on each olits major lederzrl programs lor the vear ended September 30,

2022.

Basisfor Opinion on Each Major Federal Progrant

I conducted my audit ol compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ol
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gouemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Fbderal Regulations Part 200, Unfom
Adminisnatiue Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for FederaL Awads (tJniform Guidance). My responsibilities

under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities lor the Audit of
Compliance section of my report.

I am required to be independent of City of Brownwood, Texas and to meet my other ethical responsibilities, in accordance

with relevant ethical requirements relating to my audit. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is su{ficient and

appropriate to provide a basis lor my opinion on compliance lor each major federal program. My audit does not provide
a legal determination of City of Brownwood, Texas'compliance with the compliance requirements relerred to above.

Responsibilities of Managentent for Cotnpliance

Management is responsible lor compliance with the requirements relerred to above and lor the design, impiementation,
and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements ollaws, statutes, regulations, rules,

and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to City of Brownwood,'fexas'lederal programs.

Auditor's Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of Conqrliance

My objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance

requirements relerred to above occurred, whether due to lraud or error, and express an opinion on City of Brownwood,
Texas' compliance based on my audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and

therelore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Gouemment

Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk olnot
detecting material noncompliance resulting from lraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the

compliance requireme nts relerred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or

in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about City of
Brownwood, Texas'compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole
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In perlorming an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, GouernmentAuditingStandards, and the

Uniform Guidance, I:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

r Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to lraud or error, and design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding

City of Brownwood, Texas'compiiance with the compliance requirements referred to above and perlorming such

other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances.

. Obtain an understanding of City of Brownwood, Texas' internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the eflectiveness of City of Brownwood, Texas' internal controi over compliance. Accordingly, no

such opinion is expressed.

I am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that
I identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Cornpliance

A deficienc1 in intemal conh'ol ouer compliance exists when the de sign or operation ol a control over compliance does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

noncompliance with a type olcompliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intcruaL

controLouer compliance is a deficiency, or a combination oldeficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there

is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a lederal program wiil
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signfficant dejciencl in intunal control ouer compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal controi over compliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a lederal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough

to merit attention by those charged with governance .

My consideration ol internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit ol Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance.

Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I
consider to be materiai weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

My audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over

compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose .

lAidhc{'A,p-
Ifuischke CPA, PC

April26, 2023
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

OF FED

For the Year Ended September 30,2022

Irc d c ral
Assistancc

Listing Numbcr

r4..228

2t.o27

Pass Through
Ilntity

ID Numbcr
Am()unt

Am()un t

lixpcndcd to
Sub-rccipicntsIixpcndcd

ITIiDLRAL ASS I STANC Ii:
U.S. Dcpartmcnt of Agdculturc:

Passcd through Tcxas Hcalth and Human Scruiccs
Commissio n:

Spccial Supplcmcntal Nutdtion Program lor Womcn,
Inlans and Childrcn

Rcgistcrcd Dicticizrn
Pccr Counsclor
Lactation Grant
lixtra lunding
lixtra hrnding - Othcr

Total U.S. Dcpartmcnt of r\griculturc

U.S. Dcpartmcnt r>f Housing and Urban Dcvclopmcnt:
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COVID- I9 - Lipidcmiology and Laboratory Capzrcity lor
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COVID-19 - Public Hcalth llmcrgcncy Rcsponsc:

Coopc rativc Agrcc mc nt lor L,mcrgc ncy Rcsponsc :

Public Hcalth Clisis Rcsponse
COVID- l9 - Public I-Ie alth limcrgcncy Rcsponsc:

Cr><l pc rzrtivc Agrccmc nt lo r limc rgc ncy Rcspo nsc :

Public I-lcalth Crisis Rcsponsc - Workftrrcc
COVID- l9 - Activitics to Support Statc, Tribal, flc:rl :rnd
'lcrritorial (STLT) Flcalth Dcp:rftmcnt Rcsponsc t()
Public Hcalth or Hcalthcarc Criscs

Prcvcntivc l-Icalth and Hcalth Scruiccs Block Gmnt
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Social Scrviccs Block Gmnt
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I0.557
10.5s7
10.557
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IJFrS0004B5600037 9,76 I
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

NOTE,S TO THE SCHEDULE OF TTIIRF,S OF FF,DF,RAI, AWARDS

Year Ended September 30,2022

NOTE I: BASIS OF PRE,SENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of lederal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of City of Brownwood, Texas under programs of the lederal government lor the year ended

September 30,2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unform Adminisnatiue Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirementsfor FederalAward^r (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion
of the operations of City of Brownwood, Texas, it is not intended to and does not present the net position,
changes in net position) or cash flows of City of Brownwood, Texas.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE,S

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis ofaccounting. Such expenditures
are recognized lollowing the cost principles contained in the Unilorm Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

The City of Brownwood, Texas has elected to not use the I0 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.
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CITY OF BROWNWOOD, TEXAS
Brownwood, Texas

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OJESTIONED COSTS

For the Year ended September 30,2022

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued:

Internal control over financiai reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency(s) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)?

Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance
Listing Number

yes X no

Name of Federal eram or Chrster

Community Development Block Grants/State's Program and Non-entitlement Grants in
Hawaii
Public Health Emergency Response: Cooperative Agreement for Emergency Response:

Public Health Crisis

Unmodified

yes X no

yes X none reported

yes X no

yes X no

yes X none reported

Unmodified

$ 750,000

X yes

r+.228

93.35+

Doilar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None noted

Section III Federal Award Findings and Qyestioned Costs

None noted

Section IV - Prior Year Audit Findings

No prior year findings
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